
 

 

Notice of Meeting 
 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

Tuesday, 20 October 2009 - 5:00 pm 
Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Dagenham 

 
Members: Councillor L A Smith (Chair); Councillor R C Little (Deputy Chair); Councillor 
J L Alexander, Councillor G J Bramley, Councillor S Carroll, Councillor H J Collins, 
Councillor R Gill, Councillor M A McCarthy, Councillor Mrs V Rush and Councillor P T 
Waker 
 
 
Date of publication: 9 October 2009       R. A. Whiteman 
           Chief Executive 
 

Contact Officer: Alan Dawson 
Tel. 020 8227 2348 
Fax: 020 8227 2171 

Minicom: 020 8227 2685 
E-mail: alan.dawson@lbbd.gov.uk 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Declaration of Members' Interests   
 
 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Members are asked to declare 

any personal or prejudicial interest they may have in any matter which is to be 
considered at this meeting.  
 

3. Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 29 
September 2009 (Pages 1 - 4)  

 
4. Corporate Performance Report - October 2009 (Pages 5 - 33)  
 
5. Budget Monitoring 2009/10 - April to August 2009 (Pages 35 - 51)  
 
6. Any other public items which the Chair decides are urgent   
 
7. To consider whether it would be appropriate to pass a resolution to 

exclude the public and press from the remainder of the meeting due to 
the nature of the business to be transacted.   

 



 

 

Private Business 
 

The public and press have a legal right to attend Council meetings such as the 
Executive, except where business is confidential or certain other sensitive 
information is to be discussed.  The list below shows why items are in the 
private part of the agenda, with reference to the relevant legislation (the 
relevant paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 as amended).    

 
8. Staffing Matters (to follow)   
 
 Concerns individual employees (paragraph 1)  

 
9. Any other confidential or exempt items which the Chair decides are 

urgent   
 



 
 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

Tuesday, 29 September 2009 
(5:00  - 5:58 pm)  

  
Present: Councillor L A Smith (Chair), Councillor R C Little (Deputy Chair), 
Councillor J L Alexander, Councillor G J Bramley, Councillor S Carroll, Councillor 
H J Collins, Councillor R Gill, Councillor M A McCarthy, Councillor Mrs V Rush and 
Councillor P T Waker 
 

60. Declaration of Members' Interests 
 
 There were no declarations of interest. 

 
61. Minutes (8 September 2009) 
 
 Agreed. 

 
62. Revisions to Approved Street Naming List 
 
 Received a report from the Chief Executive in respect of proposed additions to the 

Approved Street Names list, subject to the final approval of statutory consultees. 
 
Agreed, to accord with the Council’s statutory responsibilities and to help deliver 
the Community Priority of “Fair and Respectful”, to: 
 
(i) The revised list of Street Names attached at Appendix 1 to the report; 
(ii) To delegate authority to the Chief Executive to add to the Approved List: 

(a) the names of further residents of the Borough who died in active service 
abroad that are not currently included; and 

(b) the names of those commemorated by the award of the Elizabeth Cross, 
subject to obtaining families’ approval before a formal proposal is made to 
use a name. 

 
63. Council Pandemic Flu Preparations 
 
 Received a report from the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services 

on the preparations for a possible flu pandemic in the Borough.   
 
A joint Plan has been developed by the Council, NHS Barking and Dagenham, the 
Police, Fire Service and voluntary agencies and further extensive work has been 
undertaken to ensure that the Council is in the best possible position to deliver 
critical services to the local community. 
 
During the discussions it was noted that: 
 

• The second wave of the virus is expected to reach a peak during mid 
October, with predictions suggesting that up to 30% of the population may 
be affected; 

• There are a lack of robust arrangements within the Health Service to deal 

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 1



with cases of critically ill children; 
• Whilst there are longstanding principles in place in relation to local 

authorities being reimbursed for costs incurred in dealing with extreme 
events, the precise arrangements for an imminent flu pandemic have not 
been settled; 

• The provision of critical and non-critical services will be considered in the 
light of the effects of increase in demand for certain services and reduced 
staffing levels due to staff contracting the virus. 

 
Agreed, in order to ensure the ongoing delivery of critical services in the event of a 
flu pandemic: 
 
(i) The Critical Services list as set out in section 2.1 of the report, and those 

service areas where services may be curtailed in the short term if additional 
resources are required to support Critical Services as shown in section 2.3; 
and 

 
(ii) That all Members of the Council be advised as soon as practicable in the 

event that anti-viral medication is being distributed in the Borough. 
 

64. Putting People First - Personalisation 
 
 Received a report from the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services 

and a presentation from the Personalisation Programme Director on the plans to 
transform adult social care provision in the Borough as part of the ‘Putting People 
First’ national agenda. 
 
The Personalisation Programme will give people more choice and control over the 
services they receive and how they pay for them and will maximise independence, 
while at the same time reducing the involvement of the local authority in their day-
to-day lives.  Barking and Dagenham was one of thirteen local authorities to have 
taken part in the successful National Individual Budget Pilot Scheme that ended in 
December 2007 and, as a result, has already established a solid platform for many 
of the aspects of Personalisation, including the Resource Allocation System. 
 
During the discussions it was noted that: 
 

• The long-term impact of Personalisation is expected to be cost neutral, with 
efficiencies likely to be realised over time; 

• External service providers will be quality assessed.  In this respect, it was 
suggested that service providers should be required to meet the same level 
of service provision standards that are required of local authorities, possibly 
through mandatory accreditation, to ensure that customers are receiving 
value for money and that all agencies are competing on a level playing field;

• The IT systems that support Personalisation prescribe to national 
requirements and are in line with the Council’s One B&D IT Strategy; 

• The standards for service user assessments are being developed and will 
be finalised in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Adults and Public 
Health; 

• A further report to the Executive on 3 November 2009 in relation to the 
Council’s proposed response to the Government’s Green Paper on the 
funding of adult social care will cover the point raised by the Chief Executive 

Page 2



in respect of demographic changes. 
 
Agreed, to ensure the ongoing development and delivery of the Personalisation 
agenda for adult social care in the Borough, to the outline service delivery model 
as detailed in section 2 of the report and illustrated in Appendix A. 
 

65. Remodelling and Tendering of Contracts for Residential Care Services for 
People with Learning Disabilities 

 
 Received a report from the Corporate Director of Adult and Community Services 

on proposals to remodel residential care services for people with learning 
disabilities. 
 
Under the proposals, services would be provided through personalised routes 
providing greater choice, security of tenure and opportunity for independence.  
Noted that in order for the remodelling to be completed it may be necessary for the 
current contracts to be extended to the Autumn 2010. 
 
Agreed, to assist the Council in achieving national targets set out in PSA 16 (both 
housing and employment) and the Community Priorities of “Healthy” and 
“Prosperous”, to: 
 
(i) An extension of up to 31 August 2010 for the contract with Outlook Care, 

whilst individual reviews, consultation and implementation of changes takes 
place; 

 
(ii) An extension of up to three months to 31 August 2010 for the contract with 

Avenues Trust, to be used only if required in order to complete procurement 
and implementation processes effectively; and 

 
(iii) Delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Adult and Community 

Services, in consultation with the Divisional Director of Corporate Finance and 
the Legal Partner, to carry out a procurement exercise based on the proposal 
outlined in section 5 of the report and award the contract(s). 

 
66. Pre-Tender Report - Framework Agreement for Professional Construction 

Services 
 
 Received a report from the Corporate Director of Resources on the proposed 

procurement of a new framework agreement for professional construction services 
to the Council.  Noted that the packaging of the new contract has been specifically 
designed to encourage small and medium size companies to submit tenders. 
 
Agreed, in order to accord with statutory obligations and enable the Council to 
commission value for money services, to: 
 
(i) The procurement of a new four-year framework agreement for Professional 

Construction Services on the terms set out in the report; and 
 
(ii) Delegate authority to the Corporate Director of Resources, in consultation 

with the Divisional Director of Corporate Finance and the Legal Partner, to 
award the contract following the procurement process. 

 

Page 3



67. * Weekend Rail Services 
 
 The Cabinet Member for Finance and Human Resources advised that both the 

District Line and c2c rail services that pass through the Borough and also the 
Gospel Oak line into Barking station are suspended this weekend due to 
maintenance work, effectively forcing the very many local residents who do not 
have access to a car to abandon any plans to journey outside of the Borough. 
 
Agreed that the Chief Executive write to the relevant authorities expressing our 
dismay at the lack of co-ordinated planning by the rail service providers and 
requesting that steps are taken to ensure that this scenario is not repeated in the 
future.  
 
 
(* The Chair agreed that this issue could be considered at the meeting under the 
provisions of section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972.) 
 

Page 4



EXECUTIVE 
 

20 OCTOBER 2009  
 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 
 
Title: Corporate Performance Report – October 2009 For Information 

 
Summary:  
The Executive are being presented with a range of high-level performance information 
from across the Council.  
 
National Indicators  
 
Local Area Agreements Indicators which are performing well are:  
� Young People’s participation in positive activities (NI 110) 
� Household waste recycled (NI 192) 

 
A focus on performance is required for the following LAA Indicators:  
� Number of most serious violent crimes per 1000 population (NI 15)  
� Under 18 conception rates per 1000 population (NI 112)  
� 16 to 18 year olds who are not in education, training or employment (NEET) (NI 

117)  
 
Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) 
 
The Audit Commission will provide interim formal feedback for the Council on its CAA 
within the next month. This will be publicly available on 10 December 2009. 
 
High level areas for improvement for CAA overall have been identified through interim 
feedback from the Audit Commission, the Efficiency Challenge peer review and 
discussions with a wider range of managers. Areas which require a focus on improvement 
include: Value for Money; prioritisation and business planning; engagement with local 
stakeholder and Customer Insight and needs; Local Area Agreement performance and 
improvement planning; delivering assurance for services provided in relation to 
safeguarding children; and Asset Management.  
 
Customer Information 
 
� Improvements have been made in written and email response times, however there 

has been a reduction in telephone calls being answered. 
� Complaints have decreased from last year  
� There has been a significant improvement in reducing ‘avoidable contact’  
� The majority of ‘Tell us’ complaints relate to Barking Learning Centre; Anti-Social 

Behaviour; Sports centres; and Environmental services. 
 
Wards Affected: None 
 
Recommendation(s) 
 
The Executive is recommended to note the key areas of good performance and areas for 
improvement across the Council. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 4

Page 5



Head of Service: 
Guy Swindle 

Title: 
Head of Strategy and 
Performance  
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 2094 
E-mail: guy.swindle@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

Report Author: 
Amir Rashid 

Title: 
Group Manager 
Performance and 
Innovation 
 

Contact Details: 
Tel: 020 8227 2317 
E-mail: amir.rashid@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
1.  Background 
 
1.1 The Executive receive quarterly performance reports. The previous report focused 

on the performance of National Indicators and was presented to the Executive on 
the 28th July 2009. This report incorporates a wider range of performance 
information to enable a broader assessment of performance across the Council.  

 
2. Report detail 
 
2.1 The Executive are being presented with a range of high-level performance 

information from key areas within the Council.  
 
2.2 NATIONAL INDICATORS  

 
The National Indicator performance and commentary presented below related to the 
end of Quarter 1 2009/10 (reported in July), therefore any reporting since this time 
may have provided a more updated position.  
 

2.2.1 Targets for these LAA indicators were not set in 2008/09 as negotiations with 
government to set final targets did not take place until February 2009. Therefore 
performance has been rated against the London average rather than target. It is 
important to note that this therefore does not take into account a local context.  

 
2.2.2 Local Area Agreement (LAA) National Indicators performing well: 
 

National 
Indicator 
Number  

Description Latest 
performance 

2009/10 
Target 

Comments 

110 Young People’s 
participation in 
positive 
activities 

73.70% 77.40% Our performance 
is above London, 
Children’s 
Services statistical 
neighbour average 
and National 
average  

192 Household 
waste recycled  

34.59% 
(Quarter 1 
09/10) 

27% Performance at 
first quarter shows 
a significant 
improvement 
which exceeds our 
LAA targets for the 
next two years  

 

Page 6



 
Young people’s participation in positive activities (NI 110) 
 
This is defined as ‘The proportion of young people in school year 10 responding 
‘yes’ to the question: “In the last 4 weeks, have you participated in any group 
activity led by an adult outside school lessons (such as sports, arts or a youth 
group)?”. Data for this Indicator is collected via the Ofsted ‘Tell Us’ Survey. 
 
During January and February 2009, 1,232 young people aged 14 to 19 years took 
part in consultation as part of the re-branding and marketing of our youth 
provision.  This has influenced the following work areas: 
 
▪ The creation of a fully Integrated Youth Support Services (IYSS) service with 

pooled funding for all youth provision; and a restructure of the Youth Service and 
contracts to provide services for an estimated 1500 young people per week. 

 
▪ A range of programmes - both universal and targeted e.g. volunteering and 

sports; the opening of the Foyer Information Advice and Guidance (IAG) Centre 
and a comprehensive youth ‘offer ‘branded by Young People as “Street Base”. 
This was launched in Dagenham Park on 13 September 

 
The Youth Access Card project was approved on 14 July Executive. It is being 
developed to give young people control, reducing replication in registration and 
helping Council and NHS services to gather accurate demographic and activity data 
without requiring young people to fill in multiple forms. A project manager has been 
recruited and governance structures developed.  

 

The percentage of household waste recycled (NI 192) 

The figures for recycling for the 1st quarter of the year (2009/10) are already 
showing a marked increase in household recycling and with a decrease in the 
household waste that is being produced per household. The roll-out of the wheelie 
bin scheme, taking place through until October 2009 to all households, should 
increase these figures even further. Recycling Surveyors will be providing door-to-
door advice and guidance on recycling.  

 
2.2.3 A focus on performance is required for the following Local Area Agreement (LAA) 

Indicators:  

Page 7



 
National 
Indicator 
Number  

Description Latest 
performance 

2009/10 
Target 

Comments 

15 Number of most 
serious violent 
crimes per 1000 
population 

0.69 (Quarter 
1 09/10) 

1.78 Although end of 
year performance 
for 2008/09 was 
RAG assessed as 
amber when 
compared to the 
rest of London, 
performance at 1st 
quarter shows a 
68% increase in 
incidents 
compared with the 
same period last 
year. 

112 Under 18 
conception rate 
per 1000 
population 

59.6 per  
1000 (2007) 
 

28.20 Although the 2008 
data has not yet 
been published, it 
is extremely 
unlikely our LAA 
targets of 31.8 will 
have been 
achieved. 
 
The percentage 
change since 1998 
in this indicator is 
+9.9% (2007). 

117 16 to 18 year-
olds who are not 
in education, 
training or 
employment 
(NEET) 

8.9% (2008)  9% Although 
performance is 
poor comparatively 
for 2008/09 we 
exceeded our LAA 
target of 9%. 

 

Number of most serious violent crimes per 1,000 population (NI 15) 

Current performance for June shows a 68% increase in incidents compared with the 
same period last year. However, whilst there has been a drop of 36% in incidents 
from May to June, if the current trend continues, LBBD would be unlikely to meet 
the end of year LAA target.  The borough’s performance in comparison with the rest 
of London requires improvement, as LBBD has the 2nd highest rate of most serious 
violent crimes per 1,000 population in London. 

The borough is currently experiencing an increase in the number of most serious 
violent (MSV) offences. Due to changes in the way that serious violence is recorded 
it is likely that the current increase is a factor of these changes.  

Page 8



Performance is regularly reported to the Safer Borough Board. At 7th September 
meeting of the Safer Borough Board – the Board will conduct a strategic overview of 
NI 15. Remedial actions from the Board will then be developed and implemented 
via the monthly joint-agency Performance meeting.  

Current projects to tackle violent crime in the Borough include: Tackling Violent 
Crime programme led by the Metropolitan Police Service; Domestic Violence 
Review Recommendations Action Plan; Safer Neighbourhood teams working jointly 
with the Youth Offending Service; Hate Crime Action Plan Initiative; and increase 
access to treatment via criminal justice pathways.   

Under 18 conception rate per 1,000 population (NI 112) 

Data in this area is subject to an 18-month time delay.   

Key projects include: 
� Services provided at Barking Child and Family Centre, Upney Lane Walk-in 

Centre and Parsoles Clinics. There are new extended practices sited on the 
Barking Hospital site, Parsloes Park and at Barking Town Centre and also 
extended hours for the Upney Lane Walk-in-Centre. 

� ‘Healthy Children, Healthy Futures’ project – This long-term primary care 
prevention project is aimed at helping young people make better life choices and 
to improve sexual health. (‘Primary care’ refers to health services that play a 
central role in the local community such as GPs, pharmacists, dentists and 
midwives).  Additional investment (equivalent to £125K) is provided to support 
substantial growth in prevention activity through education in schools, outreach 
to high-risk groups and roll-out of a risk assessment tool. 

� Sex and Relationship Education (SRE) Programmes – Integrated strategy for 
sexual and reproductive health services for young people. 

16-18 year olds who are not in education, training or employment (NEET) (NI 117) 

The percentage of 16-18 years NEET young people has reduced year-on-year with 
performance for 2008/09 achieving 8.9%.  This is comparable with our statistical 
neighbour average (8.9%) but much higher than the London average (5.8 %).   

Key projects include: 

� Foundation Learning Tier (FLT) Progression Pathways Pilot - Foundation Learning 
aims to improve the skills of learners working below level 2 and for those aged 14 
and over, through developing high-quality credit-based qualifications.  The 
curriculum requires coverage of: Personal and Social Development (PSD); 
Functional Skills (ICT, English, Mathematics); and Vocational/subject-based areas 
(including Employability)). This project has how been extended to cover 14-19 
year olds in the borough.  More local learning providers are participating, including 
two more secondary schools and the Tuition Centre. 

� The Local Authority has recently secured £5.0 m of DCSF funding to create a 
Skills Centre which will target those young people who are already NEET, or who 
are assessed by schools as vulnerable to becoming NEET. It will provide them 
with high quality learning environments that resemble a place of work rather than 
a traditional school or college classroom. 

Page 9



� Mentoring / volunteering scheme which is based around the recruitment of 
community volunteers to support the social development of NEET children and to 
help them engage in employment and training. 

� Inspiring Communities – £450k of external funding has been awarded which will 
be targeted in the Heath Ward at white indigenous boys and girls to raise their 
aspirations and reduce the number of NEET children and Teenage Pregnancies. 

 
2.3 COMPREHENSIVE AREA ASSESSMENT (CAA) 
 

CAA replaced CPA (Comprehensive Performance Assessment) in April 2009. CAA 
has two main assessment elements: Area Assessment and Organisational 
Assessment.  The results of CAA will be publicly released on the 10th December 
2009.  

 
2.3.1 To ensure better quality services for residents that deliver value for money and the 

best possible outcome for CAA we need to continually focus on improvement. 
Areas of strong practice and areas for improvement relevant to CAA have been 
identified through: (i) interim feedback from the Audit Commission; (ii) analysis of 
the Efficiency Challenge peer review; and (iii) from discussions with Heads of 
Service and Group Managers  
 
Notable practice: 

 
� One B&D programme - has a strong vision & is well placed to help deliver 

the changes needed to improve frontline and support services 
� Local Housing Company - seen as an innovative model to meet our future 

housing needs 
� Staff - we have good quality staff who are engaged and ready to take on the 

challenge   
� Capital programme – the approach to managing the capital programme is 

well regarded by Capital Ambition. 
 
2.3.2 Areas where the Council is focusing improvement: 

  
� Value For Money (VfM) - The council is continually trying to better 

understand the extent to which services provide value for money to enable 
us to deliver more for less. A value for money strategy is currently being 
developed. 

 
� Prioritisation and Business Planning - We have made changes to the service 

and financial planning process to enable a policy led approach to the delivery 
of savings with greater involvement from members. Star Chamber sessions 
have been run to ensure financial proposals fit with the Councils priorities 
and are realistic and deliverable. 

 
� Engagement with local stakeholders and Customer Insight and Needs - 

Customer information is being used to a greater extent to inform service 
planning. 

 
� Local Area Agreement Performance and Improvement Planning - There is a 

continual focus on the performance management of out LAA and other 

Page 10



National Indicators. Performance reporting processes have been refined to 
enable greater scrutiny and challenge over the last 6  

 
� Delivering assurance for services provided in relation to safeguarding 

children - Work is taking place to ensure we are well prepared for any 
external inspection. 

 
� Asset Management -  We have a comprehensive asset management strategy 

in place which will deliver extensive change over the next 5 years. 
 
2.4. CUSTOMER INFORMATION  
 
2.4.1 Customer Responsiveness 

 
Improvements have been made in meeting the response times for written and email 
enquiries over the 12 month period April 08 to March 09, resulting in 85.2% of 
written and 99% of emails being responded to within the 10 days. However, the 
number of telephone calls answered within 20 seconds has reduced from a high of 
92.2% in April 08 to 85.9% in March 09. 

 
2.4.2 Complaints  

 
The complaints data for the period April 2008 to March 2009 has been analysed by 
department and has identified Customer Services department as having the highest 
level of complaints at 90.2%. 
 
Overall, there has been a total decrease of 152 complaints covering all stages for 
2008/2009 compared to 2007/2008.  

 
2.4.3 “Avoidable Contact”  

 
The top 5 reasons for the ‘avoidable contact’ for the Authority for the period October 
2008 to June 2009 are as follows: 

• Incorrect / insufficient signposting 
• Unnecessary signposting  (letter received confusing)  
• Service failure (service not delivered) 
• Unnecessary progress chasing ( within service standard time) 
• Internal transfer requests (switchboard calls) 

 
The levels of ‘avoidable contact’ within the Customer Services department for June 
09 are consistent across the main service areas which currently record avoidable 
contact at 30%.  
 
This is a significant improvement on the initial levels of ‘avoidable contact’ recorded 
in October 2008 of 58%.  These figures are based on recording of avoidable contact 
through the contact centre however, since May 2009 avoidable contact is now being 
recorded through the face-to-face (i.e. Barking Learning Centre (BLC) and Stour 
road receptions) A further rollout will take place in the Autumn to include the 
Enterprise call centre.  Initially this is likely to reduce the performance of this area 
due to a greater sample size; however this will then be expected to reduce due to 
action from individual contact centres to target areas of issue.  
 

Page 11



2.4.4 Tell Us  
 

‘Tell Us’ suggestions and compliments make up 75% of the feedback. The majority 
of the suggestions refer to the Barking Learning Centre, Anti-Social Behaviour, 
Sports Centres and Environmental Services. 
 
Services receive copies of the ‘Tell us’ suggestions and respond to each individual 
who provided a suggestion or feedback. 
 

2.4.5 Way forward  
 

Individual Customer Insight reports are currently being developed for individual 
services. Further analysis of data will be incorporated into these. All services will 
use this detailed Customer Insight information to inform their service plans. 

 
3. LINKS TO CORPORATE AND OTHER PLANS AND STRATEGIES  
 
3.1 The Council Plan - This lists the Council’s Key Strategic Priorities 

http://lbbd.barking-dagenham.gov.uk/council-plan/cp-update-2009-10.htm 
 
4. CONSULTEES 
 
4.1 The following were consulted in the preparation of this report: 
 

Councillor Bramley, Cabinet Member 
Bill Murphy, Corporate Director of Resources 
Guy Swindle, Head of Strategy and Performance  
Tracie Evans, Interim Divisional Director of Corporate Finance  
Yinka Owa, Legal Partner 
Danny Caine, Mary Farinha, Tony Sargeant, Anne-Marie Trimby (GMPPPs) 

 
5. BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THE REPORT: 
 

National Indicator Performance Report, Executive - 28 July 2009, Item 38. 
 
6. LIST OF APPENDICES: 

 
  Appendix 1: National Indicators Performance pack 

 

Page 12



A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

N
at

io
na

l I
nd

ic
at

or
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 R

ep
or

tin
g 

- O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

9 
 C

ou
nc

il 
Pr

io
rit

y 
W

e 
w

ill
 

ac
hi

ev
e 

th
is

 
by

…
 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

Fa
ir 

an
d 

R
es

pe
ct

fu
l 

M
or

e 
pe

op
le

 
fe

el
 th

at
 p

eo
pl

e 
fro

m
 d

iff
er

en
t 

ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
s 

ge
t o

n 
w

el
l 

to
ge

th
er

 

N
I 1

 (L
A

A
) 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 

pe
op

le
 w

ho
 

be
lie

ve
 p

eo
pl

e 
fro

m
 d

iff
er

en
t 

ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
s 

ge
t o

n 
w

el
l 

to
ge

th
er

 
49

.1
%

 

Ac
tio

ns
 fo

r I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t: 
  

- A
gr

ee
 a

ct
io

ns
, l

ea
d 

of
fic

er
s 

an
d 

fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r a

ll 
ac

tio
ns

 in
 th

e 
S

tro
ng

er
 B

or
ou

gh
 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
. 

- I
de

nt
ify

 a
ct

io
ns

 to
 b

ui
ld

 o
n 

w
or

k 
al

re
ad

y 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

in
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s.

 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r o

f f
ac

to
rs

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

de
ep

-r
oo

te
d 

op
in

io
ns

 a
nd

 th
e 

ro
le

 o
f t

he
 

m
ed

ia
, w

hi
ch

 a
ffe

ct
 o

ur
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
pe

rc
ep

tio
ns

. T
he

se
 is

su
es

 a
re

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
ed

 in
 

th
e 

re
ce

nt
 re

po
rt 

by
 Ip

so
s 

M
O

R
I r

ep
or

t 
‘u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 S
oc

ie
ty

 T
he

 P
er

ils
 o

f 
P

er
ce

pt
io

n’
 S

um
m

er
 2

00
9.

   
A

s 
an

 a
ut

ho
rit

y,
 

w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 d

ec
id

e 
ho

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 c

ap
tu

re
 th

e 
op

in
io

ns
 o

f o
ur

 re
si

de
nt

s 
in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
.  

S
ho

ul
d 

w
e 

ch
oo

se
 to

 p
la

ce
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
 o

n 
th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f t

he
 P

la
ce

 S
ur

ve
y,

 it
 n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 h
ow

 ro
bu

st
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
ca

pt
ur

ed
 in

-b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
bi

en
ni

al
 s

ur
ve

y,
 in

 
or

de
r t

o 
an

al
ys

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 m

ad
e.

 

Fa
ir 

an
d 

R
es

pe
ct

fu
l 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
an

d 
in

flu
en

ce
 in

 
pu

bl
ic

 
se

rv
ic

es
 

N
I 4

 (L
A

A
) 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 

pe
op

le
 w

ho
 fe

el
 

th
ey

 
ca

n 
in

flu
en

ce
 

de
ci

si
on

s 
in

 
th

ei
r 

lo
ca

lit
y 

37
.0

%
 

S
er

vi
ce

 c
om

m
en

ta
ry

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
 

A
s 

an
 a

ut
ho

rit
y,

 w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 d

ec
id

e 
ho

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 c

ap
tu

re
 th

e 
op

in
io

ns
 o

f o
ur

 re
si

de
nt

s 
in

 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

. 
S

ho
ul

d 
w

e 
ch

oo
se

 to
 p

la
ce

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 o
n 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f t
he

 P
la

ce
 S

ur
ve

y,
 it

 n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 h

ow
 ro

bu
st

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

ca
pt

ur
ed

 in
-b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

bi
en

ni
al

 s
ur

ve
y,

 in
 

or
de

r t
o 

an
al

ys
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 m
ad

e.
 

Page 13



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

Sa
fe

 / 
 

C
le

an
 / 

Pr
os

pe
ro

us
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 ro
ad

s 
an

d 
fo

ot
pa

th
s 

 C
le

an
er

 s
tre

et
s 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
pu

bl
ic

 s
pa

ce
s 

 
 In

cr
ea

se
d 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
ho

m
es

 m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

de
ce

nc
y 

st
an

da
rd

 

N
I 5

 (L
A

A
) 

O
ve

ra
ll/

ge
ne

ra
l 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 
lo

ca
l a

re
a 

56
.6

%
 

G
iv

en
 th

e 
br

oa
dn

es
s 

of
 th

is
 in

di
ca

to
r 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r o

f f
ac

to
rs

 th
at

 
ul

tim
at

el
y 

in
flu

en
ce

 th
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
. 

Th
er

e 
ne

ed
s 

to
 b

e 
a 

co
or

di
na

te
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l t

o 
in

flu
en

ce
 

th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f t
hi

s 
N

I. 
In

pu
t f

ro
m

 
A

du
lt 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 C
us

to
m

er
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
as

pe
ct

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

de
pa

rtm
en

t w
ill

 b
e 

ch
an

ne
lle

d 
in

to
 a

 th
em

ed
 w

or
ki

ng
 g

ro
up

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 

m
ap

 o
ut

 a
ct

io
ns

/ p
ro

je
ct

s 
th

at
 w

ill
 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

 im
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

.  
 T

he
 

w
or

ki
ng

 g
ro

up
 w

ill
 fo

cu
s 

on
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
ea

s:
 s

tre
et

 c
le

an
lin

es
s,

 g
ra

ffi
ti 

re
m

ov
al

, 
ab

an
do

ne
d 

ca
r r

em
ov

al
, b

ur
nt

 o
ut

 c
ar

s,
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l i
ss

ue
s,

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 fo

r y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
, l

ev
el

s 
of

 re
po

rte
d 

as
b,

 lo
ca

l 
au

th
or

ity
 h

ou
si

ng
 e

st
at

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
se

rv
ic

es
.  

A
 n

um
be

r o
f P

la
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ba

tc
he

d 
in

to
 th

em
es

 a
nd

 s
ta

ff 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ta
sk

ed
 w

ith
 in

ve
st

ig
at

in
g 

un
de

rly
in

g 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 c
om

pa
ris

on
 

w
ith

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 fa

m
ily

 m
em

be
rs

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
go

od
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
. R

es
ea

rc
h 

w
ill

 th
en

 b
e 

do
ne

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
w

ha
t s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rs

 a
re

 d
oi

ng
 to

 in
flu

en
ce

 th
is

 
in

di
ct

or
 a

nd
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

ke
y 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

th
em

es
 e

tc
. T

he
 o

ut
co

m
es

 o
f t

hi
s 

re
se

ar
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

 O
ct

ob
er

 

Fu
rth

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

N
I 5

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n.
 

 Th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r o

f f
ac

to
rs

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

de
ep

-r
oo

te
d 

op
in

io
ns

 a
nd

 th
e 

ro
le

 o
f t

he
 

m
ed

ia
, w

hi
ch

 a
ffe

ct
 o

ur
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
pe

rc
ep

tio
ns

. T
he

se
 is

su
es

 a
re

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
ed

 in
 

th
e 

re
ce

nt
 re

po
rt 

by
 Ip

so
s 

M
O

R
I r

ep
or

t 
‘u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 S
oc

ie
ty

 T
he

 P
er

ils
 o

f 
P

er
ce

pt
io

n’
 S

um
m

er
 2

00
9.

  
A

s 
an

 a
ut

ho
rit

y,
 w

e 
ne

ed
 to

 d
ec

id
e 

ho
w

 w
e 

w
ill

 c
ap

tu
re

 th
e 

op
in

io
ns

 o
f o

ur
 re

si
de

nt
s 

in
 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
.  

S
ho

ul
d 

w
e 

ch
oo

se
 to

 p
la

ce
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

on
 th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f t

he
 P

la
ce

 
S

ur
ve

y,
 it

 n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 h

ow
 ro

bu
st

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
ca

pt
ur

ed
 in

-b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
bi

en
ni

al
 s

ur
ve

y,
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 a
na

ly
se

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 m

ad
e.

 

Sa
fe

 
Pe

op
le

 fe
el

 
sa

fe
r i

n 
th

ei
r 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

ds
 

N
I 1

5 
(L

A
A

N
um

be
r o

f 
m

os
t s

er
io

us
 

vi
ol

en
t c

rim
es

 
pe

r 1
,0

00
 

po
pu

la
tio

n 

1.
84

 

C
ur

re
nt

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fo
r J

un
e 

sh
ow

s 
a 

68
%

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

co
m

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d 

la
st

 y
ea

r. 
A

lth
ou

gh
 th

er
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
 d

ro
p 

of
 3

6%
 in

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
fro

m
 

M
ay

 to
 J

un
e.

 If
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t t
re

nd
 

co
nt

in
ue

s,
 L

B
B

D
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

un
lik

el
y 

to
 

m
ee

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f y

ea
r t

ar
ge

t. 
Th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

l y
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

in
g 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 

E
nd

 o
f y

ea
r r

es
ul

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 1
st

 q
ua

rte
r d

at
a.

 

Page 14



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f m
os

t s
er

io
us

 v
io

le
nt

 (M
S

V
) 

of
fe

nc
es

. D
ue

 to
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 th
e 

w
ay

 th
at

 
se

rio
us

 v
io

le
nc

e 
is

 re
co

rd
ed

 it
 is

 li
ke

ly
 th

at
 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t i

nc
re

as
e 

is
 a

 fa
ct

or
 o

f t
he

se
 

ch
an

ge
s.

 T
he

 b
or

ou
gh

s 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
 

co
m

pa
ris

on
 w

ith
 L

on
do

n 
is

 p
oo

r (
2n

d 
hi

gh
es

t) 
ha

vi
ng

 a
 M

S
V

 ra
te

 s
ub

st
an

tia
lly

 
hi

gh
er

 th
an

 th
e 

M
S

G
 a

ve
ra

ge
. 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 re

gu
la

rly
 re

po
rte

d 
to

 th
e 

S
af

er
 B

or
ou

gh
 B

oa
rd

 a
nd

 u
nd

er
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 a

s 
ex

em
pt

io
ns

. 
R

em
ed

ia
l a

ct
io

ns
 fo

r u
nd

er
pe

rfo
rm

in
g 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 a

re
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
nd

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
vi

a 
th

e 
m

on
th

ly
 jo

in
t a

ge
nc

y 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

ee
tin

g.
 C

ur
re

nt
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

to
 

ta
ck

le
 v

io
le

nt
 c

rim
e 

in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 

in
cl

ud
e,

 T
ac

kl
in

g 
V

io
le

nt
 C

rim
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

le
d 

by
 th

e 
M

P
S

, D
om

es
tic

 
V

io
le

nc
e 

R
ev

ie
w

 R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n,

 S
af

er
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 te
am

s 
w

or
ki

ng
 jo

in
tly

 w
ith

 th
e 

Y
ou

th
 O

ffe
nd

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

, H
at

e 
C

rim
e 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
In

iti
at

iv
e 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 tr

ea
tm

en
t v

ia
 

cr
im

in
al

 ju
st

ic
e 

pa
th

w
ay

s.
  A

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
ov

er
vi

ew
 o

f N
I 1

5 
w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
su

bj
ec

t o
f a

 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

S
af

er
 B

or
ou

gh
 B

oa
rd

 
on

 7
 S

ep
te

m
be

r a
nd

 u
pd

at
ed

 in
 c

ov
al

en
t 

Q
tr 

2.
 

Sa
fe

 
Pe

op
le

 fe
el

 
sa

fe
r i

n 
th

ei
r 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

ds
 

N
I 1

6 
(L

A
A

)N
um

be
r 

of
 re

co
rd

ed
 

se
rio

us
 

ac
qu

is
iti

ve
 

cr
im

es
 p

er
 

1,
00

0 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

28
.5

6 

C
ur

re
nt

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fo
r J

un
e 

sh
ow

s 
a 

20
%

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
fro

m
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 m

on
th

 a
nd

 is
 o

nl
y 

12
%

 u
p 

ov
er

al
l t

hi
s 

ye
ar

. T
he

ft 
of

 m
ot

or
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

sh
ow

s 
th

e 
bi

gg
es

t r
ed

uc
tio

n 
at

 -9
%

. 
R

es
id

en
tia

l B
ur

gl
ar

y 
re

m
ai

ns
 h

ig
h 

at
 4

8%
 

in
cr

ea
se

 a
lth

ou
gh

 th
is

 is
 a

ls
o 

in
 d

ec
lin

e 
fro

m
 A

pr
il.

 W
he

n 
co

m
pa

rin
g 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
st

 
of

 L
on

do
n,

 L
B

B
D

 c
ur

re
nt

l y
 h

as
 th

e 
6t

h 

Th
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

fo
r t

hi
s 

N
at

io
na

l 
In

di
ca

to
r a

pp
ea

rs
 ro

bu
st

, w
ith

 s
pe

ci
fic

 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 to

 ta
ck

le
 u

nd
er

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, i
t i

s 
pr

op
os

ed
 to

 a
w

ai
t t

he
 o

ut
co

m
e 

of
 H

er
 M

aj
es

ty
's

 In
sp

ec
to

ra
te

 o
f C

on
st

ab
ul

ar
y 

(H
M

IC
) A

ud
it 

to
 fu

lly
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
pr

os
pe

ct
s 

fo
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

nd
 a

gr
ee

 fu
rth

er
 a

ct
io

ns
 fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t. 
Th

e 
st

ar
ts

 n
ex

t w
ee

k 
an

d 
w

ill
 

fin
is

h 
at

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 S

e p
te

m
be

r. 
It 

is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

Page 15



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

hi
gh

es
t a

cq
ui

si
tiv

e 
cr

im
e 

ra
te

 in
 th

e 
M

et
 

pe
r 1

00
0 

re
si

de
nt

s.
 T

he
re

 is
 a

 n
ew

ly
 

in
st

ig
at

ed
 D

om
es

tic
 B

ur
gl

ar
y 

an
d 

D
is

tra
ct

io
n 

B
ur

gl
ar

y 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

in
 p

la
ce

 
w

hi
ch

 is
 b

ei
ng

 c
lo

se
ly

 m
on

ito
re

d 
by

 th
e 

S
af

er
 B

or
ou

gh
 B

oa
rd

. 
Ac

tio
ns

 fo
r I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t: 

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

op
er

at
io

ns
 ru

nn
in

g 
to

 c
om

ba
t t

he
 re

ce
nt

 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l b

ur
gl

ar
y 

of
fe

nc
es

 
on

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

w
ith

 th
e 

ai
m

 o
f i

m
pr

ov
in

g 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

. A
s 

lis
te

d 
ab

ov
e,

 a
n 

ex
am

pl
e 

is
 th

e 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 in
iti

at
iv

e 
fu

nd
ed

 b
y 

G
O

L 
us

in
g 

S
el

ec
ta

 D
N

A
 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
. I

ts
 p

ur
po

se
 is

 to
 ta

rg
et

 
ha

rd
en

 p
ot

en
tia

l b
ur

gl
ar

y 
vi

ct
im

s 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t f

or
 p

os
si

bl
e 

fu
tu

re
 

ro
llo

ut
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

du
ct

. T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ev

al
ua

te
d 

af
te

r 6
 m

on
th

s 
an

d 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 m

ad
e 

w
ith

 re
ga

rd
 to

 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 u
se

 o
f t

hi
s 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
.  

Th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
se

le
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
H

om
e 

O
ffi

ce
 to

 ta
ke

 p
ar

t i
n 

th
e 

V
ig

ila
nc

e 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 T

hi
s 

is
 a

 ta
ilo

re
d 

su
pp

or
t 

pa
ck

ag
e 

fo
cu

si
ng

 o
n 

B
ur

gl
ar

y 
an

d 
R

ob
be

ry
. T

he
 V

ig
ila

nc
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 p
re

-e
m

pt
iv

e 
su

pp
or

t, 
tra

in
in

g 
an

d 
ad

di
tio

na
l r

es
ou

rc
es

 
fo

r a
re

as
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
co

un
try

 th
at

 s
ee

n 
a 

ris
e 

in
 b

ur
gl

ar
y 

an
d 

ro
bb

er
y 

ov
er

 th
e 

la
st

 
12

 m
on

th
s.

 T
he

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 s

up
po

rt 
w

ill
 la

st
 fo

r o
ne

 y
ea

r a
nd

 w
ill

 th
en

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

.  

th
at

 in
te

rim
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

at
 th

is
 

tim
e 

w
hi

ch
 c

an
 th

en
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
.  

 E
nd

 o
f y

ea
r r

es
ul

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 1
st

 q
ua

rte
r d

at
a.

 

Sa
fe

 
R

ed
uc

in
g 

re
-

of
fe

nd
in

g 
ra

te
s 

N
I 1

9 
(L

oc
al

 
LA

A
) R

at
e 

of
 

pr
ov

en
 re

-
of

fe
nd

in
g 

by
 

D
at

a 
du

e 
A

ug
us

t 2
00

9 

O
ur

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
 in

 re
la

tio
n 

to
 N

I 1
9 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Y
ou

th
 

Ju
st

ic
e 

B
oa

rd
 (Y

JB
) w

hi
ch

 h
as

 
co

m
m

en
de

d 
ou

r e
m

be
dd

in
g 

of
 p

ar
en

tin
g 

  

Page 16



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

yo
un

g 
of

fe
nd

er
s

an
d 

fa
m

ily
 in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
, o

ur
 h

ol
is

tic
 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 a

nd
 o

ur
 c

re
at

iv
ity

 in
 

re
du

ci
ng

 re
pe

at
 y

ou
th

 c
rim

e.
  T

he
 1

40
 

yo
un

g 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

in
 o

ur
 2

00
8 

re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g 

co
ho

rt 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 a
 to

ta
l o

f 6
5 

of
fe

nc
es

 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

em
 in

 th
e 

fir
st

 th
re

e 
qu

ar
te

rs
 o

f 
08

/0
9,

 g
iv

in
g 

a 
ra

tio
 o

f 0
.4

6 
of

fe
nc

es
 p

er
 

of
fe

nd
er

 in
 th

e 
co

ho
rt.

  F
ul

l y
ea

r d
at

a 
w

ill
 

be
 m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

 la
te

 s
um

m
er

 2
00

9.
 

Th
e 

Y
ou

th
 O

ffe
nd

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

 (Y
O

S
) 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 h

as
 s

ho
w

n 
a 

go
od

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
th

is
 a

re
a,

 a
nd

 is
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 b
el

ow
 re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 
ra

te
s 

fo
r 

its
 fa

m
ily

 a
ve

ra
ge

 (0
.8

3 
of

fe
nc

es
 p

er
 

yo
un

g 
pe

rs
on

 in
 c

oh
or

t).
 T

hi
s 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t m

ay
 a

ls
o 

be
 li

nk
ed

 to
 th

e 
fa

ct
 th

at
 th

e 
Y

O
S

 h
as

 a
 g

oo
d 

ra
ng

e 
of

 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 w

hi
ch

 fo
cu

s 
on

 
re

le
va

nt
 o

ffe
nd

in
g 

pa
tte

rn
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

K
ni

fe
 

C
rim

e 
an

d 
ga

ng
s.

 T
he

 s
pe

ci
al

is
t t

ea
m

s 
ar

e 
al

so
 v

er
y 

st
ro

ng
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

Y
O

S
 w

ith
 

al
l y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

be
in

g 
sc

re
en

ed
 fo

r 
ne

ed
s 

in
 a

re
as

 s
uc

h 
as

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

, 
su

bs
ta

nc
e 

m
is

us
e 

an
d 

E
TE

 
Sa

fe
 

Pe
op

le
 fe

el
 

sa
fe

r i
n 

th
ei

r 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
ds

 
/ R

ed
uc

ed
 a

nt
i-

so
ci

al
 

be
ha

vi
ou

r 

N
I 2

1 
(L

A
A

) 
D

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 

lo
ca

l c
on

ce
rn

s 
ab

ou
t a

nt
i-

so
ci

al
 

be
ha

vi
ou

r a
nd

 
cr

im
e 

is
su

es
 b

y 
th

e 
lo

ca
l c

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
po

lic
e 

29
.7

%
 

Th
is

 w
as

 a
 b

as
el

in
e 

ye
ar

 fo
r t

he
 P

la
ce

 
S

ur
ve

ys
 s

o 
no

 ta
rg

et
s 

w
er

e 
se

t. 
LB

B
D

 
re

m
ai

ns
 h

ig
he

r t
ha

t t
he

 L
on

do
n 

av
er

ag
e 

of
 2

9.
6%

 a
nd

 o
ur

 n
ea

re
st

 n
ei

gh
bo

ur
s.

 A
n 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 is

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 is
 b

ei
ng

 m
on

ito
re

d 
by

 
th

e 
S

af
er

 B
or

ou
gh

 B
oa

rd
 a

nd
 th

e 
m

on
th

ly
 

jo
in

t a
ge

nc
y 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
ee

tin
g.

 
A

ct
io

ns
 fo

r i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t i
nc

lu
de

 S
af

er
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 T

ea
m

 a
ct

iv
ity

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

ai
m

ed
 a

t e
ng

ag
em

en
t, 

al
le

vi
at

in
g 

lo
ca

l 
cr

im
e 

an
d 

A
S

B
 p

ro
bl

em
s,

 A
nt

i-s
oc

ia
l 

be
ha

vi
ou

r s
ta

nd
in

g 
ca

se
 c

on
fe

re
nc

e 
-

A
s 

an
 a

ut
ho

rit
y,

 w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 d

ec
id

e 
ho

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 c

ap
tu

re
 th

e 
op

in
io

ns
 o

f o
ur

 re
si

de
nt

s 
in

 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

.  
S

ho
ul

d 
w

e 
ch

oo
se

 to
 p

la
ce

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e 
on

 th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f t
he

 P
la

ce
 

S
ur

ve
y,

 it
 n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 h
ow

 ro
bu

st
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

ca
pt

ur
ed

 in
-b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

bi
en

ni
al

 s
ur

ve
y,

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 a

na
ly

se
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 m
ad

e.
 

Page 17



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

m
ul

ti 
ag

en
cy

 p
ro

bl
em

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

fo
ru

m
, 

S
af

er
 P

ar
ks

 T
ea

m
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e,
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 c

rim
e 

&
 J

us
tic

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
- J

us
tic

e 
se

en
 to

 J
us

tic
e 

D
on

e,
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 fa
ce

 th
e 

pe
op

le
 s

es
si

on
s.

 A
 

m
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
an

al
ys

is
 w

ill
 b

e 
ca

rri
ed

 o
ut

 
im

m
an

en
tly

.  
Th

e 
ne

ar
es

t p
ro

xy
 –

 th
e 

M
P

S
 P

ub
lic

 A
tti

tu
de

 s
ur

ve
y 

Q
ue

st
io

n 
74

 - 
is

 p
hr

as
ed

 s
lig

ht
ly

 d
iff

er
en

tly
, h

as
 a

 
sm

al
le

r c
oh

or
t o

f r
es

po
nd

en
ts

 a
nd

 is
 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
 fa

ce
 to

 fa
ce

 in
te

rv
ie

w
, b

ut
 is

 
re

po
rte

d 
ev

er
y 

qu
ar

te
r. 

 L
at

es
t r

et
ur

n 
sh

ow
s 

a 
47

%
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 ra
tin

g 
on

 a
 

ro
lli

ng
 1

2 
m

on
th

 a
ve

ra
ge

 fr
om

 A
pr

il 
08

 to
 

M
ar

ch
 0

9.
 

Fa
ir 

an
d 

R
es

pe
ct

fu
l 

M
or

e 
pe

op
le

 
fe

el
 th

at
 p

eo
pl

e 
fro

m
 d

iff
er

en
t 

ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
s 

ge
t o

n 
w

el
l 

to
ge

th
er

 

N
I 2

3 
(L

A
A

) 
P

er
ce

pt
io

ns
 

th
at

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 

th
e 

ar
ea

 tr
ea

t 
on

e 
an

ot
he

r 
w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t 
an

d 
di

gn
ity

 

59
.2

%
 

W
ith

 s
uc

h 
di

ve
rs

e 
cu

ltu
re

s 
liv

in
g 

w
ith

in
 

B
ar

ki
ng

 &
 D

ag
en

ha
m

, c
om

m
un

ity
 

in
te

ra
ct

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

a 
ch

al
le

ng
e.

 T
he

 
S

tro
ng

er
 B

or
ou

gh
 B

oa
rd

 a
re

 w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

a 
va

rie
ty

 o
f a

ct
io

ns
 a

im
ed

 a
t p

ul
lin

g 
pe

op
le

 
to

ge
th

er
 to

 s
ha

re
 k

no
w

le
dg

e/
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

&
 v

al
ue

s 
w

ith
 c

ul
tu

ra
l s

tra
ng

er
s.

 

A
s 

an
 a

ut
ho

rit
y,

 w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 d

ec
id

e 
ho

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 c

ap
tu

re
 th

e 
op

in
io

ns
 o

f o
ur

 re
si

de
nt

s 
in

 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

.  
S

ho
ul

d 
w

e 
ch

oo
se

 to
 p

la
ce

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e 
on

 th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f t
he

 P
la

ce
 

S
ur

ve
y,

 it
 n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 h
ow

 ro
bu

st
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

ca
pt

ur
ed

 in
-b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

bi
en

ni
al

 s
ur

ve
y,

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 a

na
ly

se
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 m
ad

e.
 

Sa
fe

 
R

ed
uc

in
g 

re
-

of
fe

nd
in

g 
ra

te
s 

N
I 3

0 
(L

A
A

) R
e-

of
fe

nd
in

g 
ra

te
 

of
 p

ro
lif

ic
 a

nd
 

pr
io

rit
y 

of
fe

nd
er

s 

1.
07

%
 

Th
e 

P
P

O
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
re

m
ai

ns
 a

 k
ey

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t p
rio

rit
y 

fo
r t

ac
kl

in
g 

cr
im

e 
an

d 
re

du
ci

ng
 re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g.
 T

he
 H

om
e 

O
ffi

ce
 

C
rim

e 
S

tra
te

gy
, C

ut
tin

g 
C

rim
e 

– 
a 

ne
w

 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 2
00

8 
- 2

01
1 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
in

 J
ul

y 
20

07
 m

ak
es

 c
le

ar
 th

e 
ne

ed
 to

 h
av

e 
a 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
fo

cu
s 

on
 ta

ck
lin

g 
th

e 
m

os
t 

pr
ol

ifi
c 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
in

 e
ve

ry
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
P

P
O

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 T
he

 P
P

O
 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

w
ith

in
 L

B
B

D
 s

ho
w

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
ag

re
ed

 ta
rg

et
 fo

r r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
vo

lu
m

e 
of

 
of

fe
nd

in
g 

fro
m

 th
e 

ba
se

lin
e 

of
 6

8 
by

 1
8%

, 
to

 n
o 

m
or

e 
th

an
 5

3 
of

fe
nc

es
 w

as
 m

et
. 

Th
er

e 
is

 a
 3

 m
on

th
 ti

m
e 

la
g 

so
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

fo
r 

Q
1 

in
 0

9/
10

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
po

rte
d 

in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r. 

Page 18



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

Sa
fe

 
Pe

op
le

 fe
el

 
sa

fe
r i

n 
th

ei
r 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

ds
 

N
I 3

2 
(L

A
A

) 
R

ep
ea

t 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

of
 

do
m

es
tic

 
vi

ol
en

ce
 

51
.8

9%
 

Th
is

 w
as

 b
as

el
in

e 
ye

ar
 fo

r t
ar

ge
t s

et
tin

g 
so

 n
o 

co
m

pa
ris

on
 w

ith
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 is

 p
os

si
bl

e.
 W

hi
le

 th
e 

fo
cu

s 
of

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
ag

ai
ns

t t
hi

s 
In

di
ca

to
r w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
S

af
er

 B
or

ou
gh

 
B

oa
rd

, t
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

f D
V

 o
n 

th
e 

in
di

vi
du

al
 

an
d 

fa
m

ily
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r w

or
k 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
he

al
th

ie
r B

or
ou

gh
 B

oa
rd

 a
nd

 
S

tro
ng

er
 B

or
ou

gh
 B

oa
rd

. 

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

LA
A

 re
fre

sh
, n

o 
ta

rg
et

 w
as

 s
et

 fo
r 

20
09

/1
0.

 

Sa
fe

 
R

ed
uc

in
g 

re
-

of
fe

nd
in

g 
ra

te
s 

N
I 4

0 
(L

A
A

) 
D

ru
g 

us
er

s 
in

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

tre
at

m
en

t 

46
7 

C
ur

re
nt

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 s
ho

w
s 

th
at

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 y

ea
r t

ar
ge

t i
s 

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

m
et

. T
hi

s 
w

ill
 

be
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

by
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
cr

os
s 

al
l d

ru
g 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

tie
rs

 m
ee

t t
he

 n
ee

ds
 

of
 d

iv
er

se
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 in

 B
&

D
. T

he
re

 is
 

al
so

 a
 n

um
be

r o
f p

ro
je

ct
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 

in
cr

ea
se

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 v

al
ue

 fo
r m

on
ey

 
of

 D
A

A
T 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 a

nd
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

m
at

ch
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 th

e 
lo

ca
l p

op
ul

at
io

n.
 T

he
 D

A
A

T 
te

am
 

al
so

 a
im

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 tr
ea

tm
en

t 
vi

a 
cr

im
in

al
 ju

st
ic

e 
pa

th
w

ay
s 

an
d 

in
cr

ea
se

 
ac

ce
ss

 in
to

 tr
ea

tm
en

t f
or

 a
ll 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

. 
A

ct
iv

ity
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 th

is
 ti

m
e 

la
st

 y
ea

r i
s 

lo
w

er
 b

ut
 a

ct
io

ns
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 ta
ke

n 
to

 
in

cr
ea

se
 n

um
be

rs
 e

ng
ag

in
g 

in
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

tre
at

m
en

t. 
Lo

ca
l d

at
a 

sh
ow

s 
12

8 
ne

w
 

pe
op

le
 h

av
e 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 tr
ea

tm
en

t s
in

ce
 

1s
t A

pr
il 

09
, w

ith
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 a
 to

ta
l o

f 3
38

 
P

D
U

s 
in

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
tre

at
m

en
t o

ut
 o

f a
 ta

rg
et

 
of

 4
72

 a
nd

 4
43

 o
ve

r 1
8s

 in
 tr

ea
tm

en
t 

ag
ai

ns
t a

 ta
rg

et
 o

f 7
06

. 

Th
is

 in
di

ca
to

r i
s 

co
lle

ct
ed

 q
ua

rte
rly

, b
ut

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 re
le

as
ed

 w
ith

 a
 ti

m
e-

la
g.

 

Page 19



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

Sa
fe

 
Pe

op
le

 fe
el

 
sa

fe
r i

n 
th

ei
r 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

ds
 

N
I 4

9(
i) 

(L
oc

al
 

LA
A

) T
ot

al
 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
pr

im
ar

y 
fir

es
 

pe
r 1

00
,0

00
 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
23

2.
43

 

C
ur

re
nt

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fo
r J

un
e 

sh
ow

s 
th

at
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 h

as
 re

m
ai

ne
d 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

w
ith

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d 

la
st

 y
ea

r w
ith

 1
04

 
in

ci
de

nt
s.

 If
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t t
re

nd
 c

on
tin

ue
s,

 
LB

B
D

 w
ou

ld
 m

ee
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f y
ea

r t
ar

ge
t. 

E
xp

ec
t t

o 
ac

hi
ev

e 
su

cc
es

s 
in

 th
is

 a
re

a 
w

ith
 p

la
nn

ed
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
ss

is
tin

g 
in

 d
riv

in
g 

th
is

 d
ow

n 
w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
e 

E
st

at
e 

da
ys

/O
pe

ra
tio

n 
P

um
a/

P
C

S
O

’s
/H

om
e 

Fi
re

 
S

af
er

 V
is

its
. 

Sa
fe

 
Pe

op
le

 fe
el

 
sa

fe
r i

n 
th

ei
r 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

ds
 

N
I 4

9(
ii)

 (L
oc

al
 

LA
A

) T
ot

al
 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
fa

ta
lit

ie
s 

du
e 

to
 

pr
im

ar
y 

fir
es

 
pe

r 1
00

,0
00

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

0.
60

 

C
ur

re
nt

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fo
r J

un
e 

sh
ow

s 
th

er
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 1
 fa

ta
lit

y 
ar

is
in

g 
fro

m
 a

 
pr

im
ar

y 
fir

e 
w

hi
ch

 is
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 o

f 1
 

in
ci

de
nt

 c
om

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

pe
rio

d 
la

st
 y

ea
r. 

Sa
fe

 
Pe

op
le

 fe
el

 
sa

fe
r i

n 
th

ei
r 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

ds
 

N
I 4

9(
iii

) (
Lo

ca
l 

LA
A

) T
ot

al
 

nu
m

be
r o

f n
on

-
fa

ta
l c

as
ua

lti
es

 
(e

xc
lu

di
ng

 
pr

ec
au

tio
na

ry
 

ch
ec

ks
) p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

po
pu

la
tio

n 

14
.3

8 

C
ur

re
nt

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fo
r J

un
e 

sh
ow

s 
a 

25
%

 d
ro

p 
on

 a
ll 

in
ju

rie
s 

fo
r Q

1,
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

on
 fr

om
 th

e 
43

.5
%

 fa
ll 

in
 0

8/
09

. I
f t

he
 

cu
rr

en
t t

re
nd

 c
on

tin
ue

s,
 L

B
B

D
 w

ou
ld

 
m

ee
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f y
ea

r t
ar

ge
t. 

N
o 

re
al

 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 b
ei

ng
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
w

ith
 

re
ga

rd
s 

to
 th

is
 is

su
e 

ot
he

r t
ha

n 
th

e 
H

om
e 

Fi
re

s 
S

af
et

y 
V

is
its

 a
nd

 C
om

m
un

ity
 F

ire
 

S
af

et
y 

w
or

k.
 S

uc
ce

ss
 fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 if

 w
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
ou

r c
or

e 
C

FS
 

ac
tiv

iti
es

. 

Ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r t

hi
s 

in
di

ca
to

r a
re

 s
et

 b
y 

th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 F

ire
 B

rig
ad

e.
 

H
ea

lth
y 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
m

en
ta

l w
el

l-
be

in
g 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

N
I 5

1 
(L

A
A

) 
E

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 

C
A

M
H

S
 

A
w

ai
tin

g 
da

ta
 re

le
as

e 

S
er

vi
ce

 c
om

m
en

ta
ry

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
 

  

Page 20



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

H
ea

lth
y 

R
ed

uc
ed

 
ch

ild
ho

od
 

ob
es

ity
 

N
I 5

2a
 (L

oc
al

 
LA

A
) T

ak
e 

up
 

of
 s

ch
oo

l 
lu

nc
he

s 
- 

P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
ls

 

52
.6

%
 

Ta
rg

et
 a

nd
 ra

tio
na

le
 h

av
e 

no
t b

ee
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

. 

H
ea

lth
y 

R
ed

uc
ed

 
ch

ild
ho

od
 

ob
es

ity
 

N
I 5

2b
 (L

oc
al

 
LA

A
) T

ak
e 

up
 

of
 s

ch
oo

l 
lu

nc
he

s 
- 

S
ec

on
da

ry
 

S
ch

oo
ls

 

48
.1

%
 

Th
is

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

r i
s 

ne
w

 a
nd

 is
 

so
ur

ce
d 

fro
m

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 s

ur
ve

y 
be

 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 th

e 
S

ch
oo

l F
oo

d 
Tr

us
t. 

Th
e 

la
te

st
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

re
su

lts
 a

re
 fo

r t
he

 s
ur

ve
y 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 fo

r t
he

 2
00

8/
20

09
 y

ea
r. 

D
 F

or
 

fu
ll 

de
ta

ils
 o

f h
ow

 th
e 

S
ch

oo
l F

oo
d 

Tr
us

t 
S

ur
ve

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

to
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f N
I5

2 
pl

ea
se

 re
fe

r t
o 

th
e 

'T
hi

rd
 A

nn
ua

l S
ur

ve
y 

of
 T

ak
e-

U
p 

of
 S

ch
oo

l M
ea

ls
 in

 E
ng

la
nd

' 
R

ep
or

t a
t t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

ad
dr

es
s:

 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.s

ch
oo

lfo
od

tru
st

.o
rg

.u
k/

U
pl

oa
d

D
oc

s/
Li

br
ar

y/
D

oc
um

en
ts

/th
ird

_a
nn

ua
l_

su
rv

ey
_o

f_
ta

ke
_u

p_
fin

al
.p

df
   

 

Ta
rg

et
 a

nd
 ra

tio
na

le
 h

av
e 

no
t b

ee
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

. 

H
ea

lth
y 

R
ed

uc
ed

 h
ea

lth
 

in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

N
I 5

4 
(L

A
A

) 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r 

di
sa

bl
ed

 
ch

ild
re

n 

In
di

ca
to

r n
ot

 
co

lle
ct

ed
 in

 
20

08
/0

9 

Th
is

 is
 a

 n
ew

 in
di

ca
to

r t
ha

t w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
un

til
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 2
00

9/
20

10
. 

  

H
ea

lth
y 

R
ed

uc
ed

 
ch

ild
ho

od
 

ob
es

ity
 

N
I 5

6 
(L

oc
al

 
LA

A
) 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 

ch
ild

re
n 

in
 Y

ea
r 

6 
w

ith
 h

ei
gh

t 
an

d 
w

ei
gh

t 
re

co
rd

ed
 w

ho
 

ar
e 

ob
es

e 
D

at
a 

du
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

09
 

D
at

a 
is

 s
ou

rc
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
hi

ld
 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

rie
nc

es
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t t

im
e-

la
g 

(d
ue

 to
 

th
e 

sh
ee

r v
ol

um
e 

of
 d

at
a 

an
d 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 

of
 ti

m
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 p
ro

ce
ss

 a
nd

 p
ub

lis
h 

it)
. 

Th
e 

20
07

/2
00

9 
N

C
M

P
 re

su
lts

 a
pp

ly
 to

 th
e 

20
07

/2
00

8 
ye

ar
, b

ut
 w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 fo

r 
20

08
/2

00
9 

as
se

ss
m

en
t p

ur
po

se
s 

e.
g.

 
C

A
A

 a
s 

it 
w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
la

te
st

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
da

ta
.A

ct
io

ns
 o

f I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t:P
ilo

t 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 o

f y
ea

r 1
 in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 

va
ria

bl
e.

 W
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 C
ar

ne
gi

e 
W

ei
gh

t 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 M
E

N
D

 to
 re

vi
ew

 
m

od
el

s 
of

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 0
 to

 
18

yr
 m

od
el

. 

Fu
rth

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

N
I 5

6 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n.
To

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
e 

pr
ob

le
m

 o
f o

be
si

ty
 in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h,

 fu
rth

er
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
ho

ts
po

t a
re

as
 w

ou
ld

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
ar

e 
de

si
gn

ed
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f s

pe
ci

fic
 

gr
ou

ps
.  

Th
is

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
th

os
e 

sc
ho

ol
s 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 w
he

re
 th

e 
le

ve
ls

 o
f c

hi
ld

ho
od

 
ob

es
ity

 a
re

 h
ig

he
st

.  

Page 21



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

H
ea

lth
y 

R
ed

uc
ed

 
ch

ild
ho

od
 

ob
es

ity
 / 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
m

en
ta

l w
el

l-
be

in
g 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

N
I 5

7 
(L

oc
al

 
LA

A
) C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
in

 
hi

gh
 q

ua
lit

y 
P

E
 

an
d 

sp
or

t 

In
di

ca
to

r n
ot

 
co

lle
ct

ed
 in

 
20

08
/0

9 

Th
is

 is
 a

 n
ew

 in
di

ca
to

r t
ha

t w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
un

til
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 2
00

9/
20

10
. 

  

In
sp

ire
d 

an
d 

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 b

y 
ag

e 
16

 

N
I 7

2 
(D

C
S

F 
LA

A
) 

A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t o
f 

at
 le

as
t 7

8 
po

in
ts

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 
Fo

un
da

tio
n 

S
ta

ge
 

A
w

ai
tin

g 
da

ta
 re

le
as

e 

Ac
tio

ns
 fo

r I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
- T

ar
ge

te
d 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 s

ch
oo

ls
 a

nd
 s

et
tin

gs
 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
sa

tis
fa

ct
or

y 
an

d 
be

lo
w

 O
fs

te
d 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
ou

tc
om

es
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
an

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ts
 fo

r l
ea

rn
in

g 
- T

ar
ge

te
d 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 s

el
ec

te
d 

re
ce

pt
io

n 
cl

as
se

s 
w

he
re

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t g
ap

 is
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 a
bo

ve
 b

or
ou

gh
 a

ve
ra

ge
 

- T
ar

ge
te

d 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 s
el

ec
te

d 
sc

ho
ol

s 
an

d 
se

tti
ng

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

nu
m

be
rs

 o
f c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 la
ng

ua
ge

 d
el

ay
 

or
 d

is
or

de
r t

hr
ou

gh
 E

ve
ry

 C
hi

ld
 a

 T
al

ke
r 

pr
oj

ec
t 

Fu
rth

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

N
I 7

2 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n.
 

 P
ro

vi
si

on
al

 re
su

lts
 w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

at
 2

nd
 

Q
ua

rte
r. 

In
sp

ire
d 

an
d 

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 b

y 
ag

e 
16

 

N
I 7

3 
(D

C
S

F 
LA

A
) 

A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t a
t 

le
ve

l 4
 o

r a
bo

ve
 

in
 b

ot
h 

E
ng

lis
h 

an
d 

M
at

hs
 a

t 
K

ey
 S

ta
ge

 2
 

71
%

 
(p

ro
vi

si
on

al
) 

Ac
tio

ns
 fo

r I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
- I

m
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 o

f E
ng

lis
h 

an
d 

m
at

he
m

at
ic

s 
in

 s
ch

oo
ls

 th
ro

ug
h 

he
ad

 
te

ac
he

r/S
en

io
r L

ea
de

rs
hi

p 
Te

am
 

C
on

tin
uo

us
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

(C
P

D
) a

nd
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 le

ad
in

g 
te

ac
he

rs
. 

- I
m

pl
em

en
t a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
E

ve
ry

 C
hi

ld
 a

 W
rit

er
 to

 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 im

pr
ov

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

of
 w

rit
in

g.
- C

on
tin

ue
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 s
up

po
rt 

fo
r s

ch
oo

l 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 th
ro

ug
h 

Lo
nd

on
 C

ha
lle

ng
e.

 
- S

tre
ng

th
en

 te
ac

he
rs

’ k
no

w
le

dg
e 

an
d 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

 in
 th

e 
co

re
 

su
bj

ec
ts

 th
ro

ug
h 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
A

ss
es

si
ng

 P
up

ils
’ 

P
ro

gr
es

s 

Fu
rth

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

N
I 7

3 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n.
 

 P
ro

vi
si

on
al

 re
su

lts
 w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

at
 2

nd
 

Q
ua

rte
r. 

Page 22



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

In
sp

ire
d 

an
d 

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 b

y 
ag

e 
16

 

N
I 7

5 
(D

C
S

F 
LA

A
) 

A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t o
f 

5 
or

 m
or

e 
A

*-
 C

 
gr

ad
es

 a
t 

G
C

S
E

 o
r 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
E

ng
lis

h 
an

d 
M

at
hs

 

D
at

a 
du

e 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
9

D
at

a 
re

po
rte

d 
an

nu
al

ly
. T

he
 d

at
a 

re
po

rte
d 

re
la

te
s 

to
 th

e 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r i

.e
. d

at
a 

re
po

rte
d 

fo
r 2

00
7/

20
08

 re
la

te
s 

to
 th

e 
20

07
/2

00
8 

ac
ad

em
ic

 y
ea

r. 
D

at
a 

fo
r t

he
 

20
08

/2
00

9 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r (

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
08

 - 
Ju

ne
 2

00
9)

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
po

rte
d 

in
 

N
ov

em
be

r/D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9 
w

he
n 

pu
bl

is
he

d.
 It

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 b

or
ne

 in
 m

in
d 

th
at

 
fo

r t
he

 2
00

8/
20

09
 e

nd
 o

f y
ea

r 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 e

.g
. C

A
A

, t
he

 m
os

t r
ec

en
tly

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

da
ta

 w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 i.
e.

 2
00

7/
20

08
. 

P
ro

vi
si

on
al

 re
su

lts
 w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

at
 2

nd
 

Q
ua

rte
r. 

In
sp

ire
d 

an
d 

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
Le

ve
l 

2 
an

d 
3 

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
t 

ag
e 

19
 

N
I 8

0 
(L

A
A

) 
A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t o

f 
a 

Le
ve

l 3
 

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
n 

by
 

th
e 

ag
e 

of
 1

9 

D
at

a 
du

e 
M

ay
 2

01
0 

Ac
tio

ns
 fo

r I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t- 
P

os
t-1

6 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 k
ey

 le
ve

r t
o 

ef
fe

ct
 c

ha
ng

e 
bu

t i
s 

a 
ne

w
 ro

le
 fo

r t
he

 L
A

 
an

d 
re

pl
ac

es
 a

 n
at

io
na

l b
od

y 
(L

S
C

) w
ith

 
na

tio
na

l s
up

po
rt 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
.  

It 
is

 v
ita

l t
ha

t 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

ar
e 

di
re

ct
ed

, e
ar

ly
, t

ow
ar

ds
 th

e 
cr

ea
tio

n 
of

 o
ur

 lo
ca

l p
os

t-1
6 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

ca
pa

bi
lit

y.
- I

n 
th

is
 c

on
te

xt
, 

th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 fo
r c

ol
le

ct
in

g,
 c

ol
la

tin
g 

an
d 

an
al

ys
in

g 
po

st
-1

6 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 
pr

ov
id

er
 d

at
a 

al
so

 n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

st
re

ng
th

en
ed

 –
 n

ot
 le

as
t t

o 
ca

te
r f

or
 th

e 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

si
de

nt
 / 

no
n-

re
si

de
nt

 is
su

e-
 G

iv
en

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

 e
co

no
m

ic
 d

ow
nt

ur
n 

on
 th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 p

ro
fil

e 
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

(w
hi

ch
 a

re
 

ov
er

w
he

lm
in

gl
y 

sm
al

l a
nd

 m
ed

iu
m

 
en

te
rp

ris
e 

w
ith

 a
n 

av
er

ag
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 o

f 
14

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s)

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
f t

he
 

A
pp

re
nt

ic
es

hi
p 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t U
ni

t (
in

 th
e 

fo
rm

s 
of

 re
cr

ui
tm

en
t, 

br
ok

er
ag

e 
to

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
pr

ov
id

er
 a

nd
 m

en
to

rin
g 

su
pp

or
t) 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 fr
ee

 o
f c

ha
rg

e.
- T

he
 te

nd
er

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

ha
s 

be
gu

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

co
nt

ra
ct

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

-te
nd

er
ed

 b
y 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
10

. 

Fu
rth

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

N
I 8

0 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n.
P

ro
vi

si
on

al
 re

su
lts

 w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
at

 2
nd

 Q
ua

rte
r. 

Page 23



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

In
sp

ire
d 

an
d 

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
Le

ve
l 

2 
an

d 
3 

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
t 

ag
e 

19
 

N
I 8

1 
(L

oc
al

 
LA

A
) T

he
 g

ap
 

in
 a

tta
in

m
en

t o
f 

Le
ve

l 3
 a

t a
ge

 
19

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

os
e 

w
ho

 w
er

e 
in

 re
ce

ip
t o

f f
re

e 
sc

ho
ol

 m
ea

ls
 a

t 
ac

ad
em

ic
 a

ge
 

15
 a

nd
 th

os
e 

w
ho

 w
er

e 
no

t 

D
at

a 
du

e 
M

ay
 2

01
0 

S
er

vi
ce

 c
om

m
en

ta
ry

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
 

In
sp

ire
d 

an
d 

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
Le

ve
l 

2 
an

d 
3 

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 a
t 

ag
e 

19
 

N
I 8

2 
(L

oc
al

 
LA

A
) T

he
 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 in

 
re

ce
ip

t o
f f

re
e 

sc
ho

ol
 m

ea
ls

 a
t 

ac
ad

em
ic

 a
ge

 
15

 w
ho

 a
tta

in
 

Le
ve

l 2
 

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 b
y 

ag
e 

19
 

D
at

a 
du

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
09

 

S
er

vi
ce

 c
om

m
en

ta
ry

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
 

In
sp

ire
d 

an
d 

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 b

y 
ag

e 
16

 

N
I 8

7 
(D

C
S

F 
LA

A
) 

S
ec

on
da

ry
 

sc
ho

ol
 

pe
rs

is
te

nt
 

ab
se

nc
e 

ra
te

 
D

at
a 

du
e 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

10
 

D
at

a 
re

po
rte

d 
an

nu
al

ly
. T

he
 d

at
a 

re
po

rte
d 

re
la

te
s 

to
 th

e 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r i

.e
. d

at
a 

re
po

rte
d 

fo
r 2

00
7/

20
08

 re
la

te
s 

to
 th

e 
20

07
/2

00
8 

ac
ad

em
ic

 y
ea

r. 
D

at
a 

fo
r t

he
 

20
08

/2
00

9 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r (

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
08

 - 
Ju

ne
 2

00
9)

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
po

rte
d 

in
 

N
ov

em
be

r/D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9 
w

he
n 

pu
bl

is
he

d.
 It

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 b

or
ne

 in
 m

in
d 

th
at

 
fo

r t
he

 2
00

8/
20

09
 e

nd
 o

f y
ea

r 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 e

.g
. C

A
A

, t
he

 m
os

t r
ec

en
tly

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

da
ta

 w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 i.
e.

 2
00

7/
20

08
. 

A
 n

um
be

r o
f t

he
 N

at
io

na
l I

nd
ic

at
or

s 
fo

r 
at

ta
in

m
en

t a
re

 s
et

 a
nn

ua
lly

 in
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t f
or

 C
hi

ld
re

n,
 S

ch
oo

ls
 

an
d 

Fa
m

ili
es

 (D
C

S
F)

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
S

ch
oo

ls
 

an
d 

LA
s 

Ta
rg

et
 S

et
tin

g 
(S

aL
TS

) p
ro

ce
ss

. 
Th

ey
 a

re
 a

n 
ag

gr
eg

at
e 

of
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 ta
rg

et
s 

se
t 

by
 s

ch
oo

ls
, w

hi
ch

 a
re

 in
 tu

rn
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

te
ac

he
r’s

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 o
f i

nd
iv

id
ua

l p
up

ils
 in

 
a 

gi
ve

n 
ye

ar
 g

ro
up

. T
he

 ta
rg

et
 s

et
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
is

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
au

tu
m

n 
te

rm
 

an
d 

m
us

t b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
31

st
 J

an
ua

ry
. 

S
ch

oo
ls

 a
re

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 s

et
 ta

rg
et

s 
ne

ar
ly

 tw
o 

ye
ar

s 
in

 a
dv

an
ce

 (e
.g

. t
ar

ge
ts

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 in

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

10
 w

ou
ld

 re
fe

r t
o 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
t i

n 
th

e 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r 2

01
0/

11
). 

 Th
e 

ta
rg

et
 s

et
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
is

 e
xt

re
m

el
y 

re
so

ur
ce

 in
te

ns
iv

e 
fo

r s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 in
di

vi
du

al
 

sc
ho

ol
 c

oh
or

ts
 c

an
 c

ha
ng

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

co
ur

se
 o

f a
 s

in
gl

e 
ye

ar
. T

hi
s 

m
ea

ns
 th

at
 if

 
it 

w
er

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 to

 s
et

 ta
rg

et
s 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
s 

in
 

ad
va

nc
e,

 th
ey

 w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 

an
nu

al
ly

. T
he

re
fo

re
, y

ea
rly

 ta
rg

et
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

se
t 

in
 th

es
e 

ca
se

s.
 

 P
ro

vi
si

on
al

 re
su

lts
 w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

at
 2

nd
 

Q
ua

rte
r. 

Page 24



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

In
sp

ire
d 

an
d 

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 b

y 
ag

e 
16

 

N
I 9

2 
(D

C
S

F 
LA

A
) N

ar
ro

w
in

g 
th

e 
ga

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
lo

w
es

t 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

20
%

 
in

 th
e 

E
ar

ly
 

Y
ea

rs
 

Fo
un

da
tio

n 
S

ta
ge

 P
ro

fil
e 

 

D
at

a 
du

e 
Se

pt
 2

00
9 

D
at

a 
re

po
rte

d 
an

nu
al

ly
. T

he
 d

at
a 

re
po

rte
d 

re
la

te
s 

to
 th

e 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r i

.e
. d

at
a 

re
po

rte
d 

fo
r 2

00
7/

20
08

 re
la

te
s 

to
 th

e 
20

07
/2

00
8 

ac
ad

em
ic

 y
ea

r. 
D

at
a 

fo
r t

he
 

20
08

/2
00

9 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r (

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
08

 - 
Ju

ne
 2

00
9)

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
po

rte
d 

in
 

N
ov

em
be

r/D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

9 
w

he
n 

pu
bl

is
he

d.
 It

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 b

or
ne

 in
 m

in
d 

th
at

 
fo

r t
he

 2
00

8/
20

09
 e

nd
 o

f y
ea

r 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 e

.g
. C

A
A

, t
he

 m
os

t r
ec

en
tly

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

da
ta

 w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 i.
e.

 2
00

7/
20

08
. 

In
sp

ire
d 

an
d 

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 b

y 
ag

e 
16

 

N
I 9

3 
(D

C
S

F 
LA

A
) 

P
ro

gr
es

si
on

 b
y 

2 
le

ve
ls

 in
 

E
ng

lis
h 

be
tw

ee
n 

K
ey

 
S

ta
ge

 1
 a

nd
 2

  

A
w

ai
tin

g 
da

ta
 re

le
as

e 

S
er

vi
ce

 c
om

m
en

ta
ry

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
 

In
sp

ire
d 

an
d 

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 b

y 
ag

e 
16

 

N
I 9

4 
(D

C
S

F 
LA

A
) 

P
ro

gr
es

si
on

 b
y 

2 
le

ve
ls

 in
 

M
at

hs
 b

et
w

ee
n 

K
ey

 S
ta

ge
 1

 
an

d 
K

ey
 S

ta
ge

 
2 

A
w

ai
tin

g 
da

ta
 re

le
as

e 

S
er

vi
ce

 c
om

m
en

ta
ry

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
 

In
sp

ire
d 

an
d 

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 b

y 
ag

e 
16

 

N
I 9

9 
(D

C
S

F 
LA

A
) C

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 c

ar
e 

re
ac

hi
ng

 
le

ve
l 4

 in
 

E
ng

lis
h 

at
 K

ey
 

S
ta

ge
 2

 

A
w

ai
tin

g 
da

ta
 re

le
as

e 

S
er

vi
ce

 c
om

m
en

ta
ry

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
 

 

Page 25



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

In
sp

ire
d 

an
d 

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 b

y 
ag

e 
16

 

N
I 1

00
 (D

C
S

F 
LA

A
) C

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 c

ar
e 

re
ac

hi
ng

 
le

ve
l 4

 in
 M

at
hs

 
at

 K
ey

 S
ta

ge
 2

 

A
w

ai
tin

g 
da

ta
 re

le
as

e 

S
er

vi
ce

 c
om

m
en

ta
ry

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
 

In
sp

ire
d 

an
d 

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 b

y 
ag

e 
16

 

N
I 1

01
 (D

C
S

F 
LA

A
) C

hi
ld

re
n 

in
 c

ar
e 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
5 

A
*-

C
 G

C
S

E
s 

(o
r 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
) a

t 
K

ey
 S

ta
ge

 4
 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
E

ng
lis

h 
an

d 
M

at
hs

) 

A
w

ai
tin

g 
da

ta
 re

le
as

e 

S
er

vi
ce

 c
om

m
en

ta
ry

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
 

In
sp

ire
d 

an
d 

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 b

y 
ag

e 
16

 

N
I 1

02
a 

(L
A

A
) 

A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
ga

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
pu

pi
ls

 e
lig

ib
le

 
fo

r f
re

e 
sc

ho
ol

 
m

ea
ls

 a
nd

 th
ei

r 
pe

er
s 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
th

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 

le
ve

l a
t K

ey
 

S
ta

ge
 2

 

A
w

ai
tin

g 
da

ta
 re

le
as

e 

In
sp

ire
d 

an
d 

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
qu

al
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 b

y 
ag

e 
16

 

N
I 1

02
b 

(L
A

A
) 

A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
ga

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
pu

pi
ls

 e
lig

ib
le

 
fo

r f
re

e 
sc

ho
ol

 
m

ea
ls

 a
nd

 th
ei

r 
pe

er
s 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
th

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 

le
ve

l a
t K

ey
 

S
ta

ge
 4

 

A
w

ai
tin

g 
da

ta
 re

le
as

e 

D
at

a 
re

po
rte

d 
ab

ov
e 

re
la

te
s 

to
 th

e 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r i

.e
. f

ro
m

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
7 

- A
ug

us
t 2

00
8.

 T
he

 s
am

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
e 

ap
pl

ie
s 

to
 ta

rg
et

s 
i.e

. t
he

 ta
rg

et
 fo

r 
20

09
/1

0 
is

 fo
r t

he
 a

ca
de

m
ic

 y
ea

r 
(S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
00

9 
- A

ug
us

t 2
01

0)
. T

hi
s 

ru
ns

 s
lig

ht
ly

 a
t o

dd
s 

w
ith

 s
om

e 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gi
es

 u
se

d 
w

he
n 

re
po

rti
ng

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l a
tta

in
m

en
t a

nd
 ta

rg
et

s.
 

P
le

as
e 

be
ar

 th
is

 in
 m

in
d 

w
he

n 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
da

ta
 a

ga
in

st
 o

th
er

 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

ns
. F

or
 th

e 
pu

rp
os

es
 o

f 
as

se
ss

m
en

t, 
th

e 
la

te
st

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
da

ta
 is

 
us

ed
 i.

e.
 fo

r t
he

 2
00

9 
C

A
A

 a
nd

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

es
, t

he
 d

at
a 

fro
m

 th
e 

20
07

/2
00

8 
ac

ad
em

ic
 y

ea
r i

s 
us

ed
. T

he
 

ta
rg

et
 s

ee
n 

ab
ov

e 
is

 s
ou

rc
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t L

A
A

 

 

Page 26



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

In
sp

ire
d 

an
d 

Su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 ra
ng

e 
an

d 
qu

al
ity

 o
f 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 fo
r 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 

N
I 1

10
 (L

A
A

) 
Y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e’

s 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
in

 
po

si
tiv

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

73
.7

0%
 

N
I 1

10
 is

 a
 n

ew
 in

di
ca

to
r s

o 
th

er
e 

is
 y

et
 

no
 h

is
to

ric
al

 d
at

a 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
ye

ar
ly

 c
om

pa
ris

on
s.

  L
BB

D
 2

00
8/

09
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 a

t (
73

.7
%

) i
s 

st
ro

ng
, a

bo
ve

 
co

m
pa

ra
tiv

e 
E

ng
la

nd
 (6

9.
5%

), 
S

ta
tis

tic
al

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

 (6
6.

5%
) a

nd
 L

on
do

n 
(6

7.
9%

) 
av

er
ag

es
. 

D
at

a 
ca

pt
ur

ed
 in

 th
e 

an
nu

al
 O

fs
te

d 
Te

llU
s 

S
ur

ve
y 

Sa
fe

 
Fe

w
er

 y
ou

ng
 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
N

I 1
11

 (L
A

A
) 

Fi
rs

t t
im

e 
en

tra
nt

s 
to

 th
e 

Y
ou

th
 J

us
tic

e 
sy

st
em

 a
ge

d 
10

-1
7 

D
at

a 
du

e 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
09

 

C
la

rif
ic

at
io

n 
on

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t c

oh
or

t h
as

 
be

en
 s

ou
gh

t f
ro

m
 th

e 
Y

JB
 a

nd
 G

O
L 

an
d 

as
 y

et
 th

e 
fig

ur
es

 h
av

e 
no

t b
ee

n 
re

le
as

ed
 

fro
m

 th
e 

P
ol

ic
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
om

pu
te

r. 
Th

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 le
ve

l f
or

 th
e 

ba
se

lin
e 

(2
00

7/
08

) i
s 

po
or

 a
ga

in
st

 fa
m

ily
 

co
m

pa
ra

to
rs

 b
ut

 it
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 e
m

ph
as

iz
ed

 
th

at
 th

e 
va

lid
ity

 o
f t

he
 P

N
C

 d
at

a 
ha

s 
be

en
 

st
ro

ng
ly

 d
is

pu
te

d 
by

 th
is

 b
or

ou
gh

 a
nd

 
ot

he
rs

. F
ig

ur
es

 fo
r 2

00
8/

09
 a

re
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

N
ov

 0
9.

 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

t d
is

pu
te

s 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

P
ol

ic
e 

N
at

io
na

l C
om

pu
te

r d
at

a.
  A

pp
ar

en
t 

un
de

rp
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 s

ee
n 

to
 b

e 
a 

da
ta

 
va

lid
ity

 is
su

e 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
hi

gh
lig

ht
ed

 a
t 

th
e 

S
af

er
 B

or
ou

gh
 B

oa
rd

.  
 

H
ea

lth
y 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

te
en

ag
e 

pr
eg

na
nc

ie
s 

N
I 1

12
 (L

A
A

) 
U

nd
er

 1
8 

co
nc

ep
tio

n 
ra

te
 

(T
he

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
ch

an
ge

 in
 th

e 
ra

te
 s

in
ce

 
ba

se
lin

e 
ye

ar
 - 

19
98

) 
A

w
ai

tin
g 

da
ta

 re
le

as
e 

Ac
tio

ns
 fo

r I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t: 
- R

es
tru

ct
ur

e 
of

 te
am

 a
nd

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

ac
ro

ss
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Tr

us
t w

ith
 c

le
ar

 
ac

co
un

ta
bi

lit
y,

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s.

 
- D

ed
ic

at
ed

 re
se

ar
ch

 a
nd

 d
at

a 
an

al
ys

t 
ro

le
 (L

B
B

D
) a

nd
 p

la
nn

ed
 jo

in
t 

co
m

m
is

si
on

er
 fo

r T
ee

na
ge

 P
re

gn
an

cy
 

(L
B

B
D

) t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

re
al

 ti
m

e 
da

ta
 a

nd
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
- R

ev
is

in
g 

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

H
or

m
on

al
 

C
on

tra
ce

pt
iv

e 
(E

H
E

), 
Lo

ca
lly

 E
nh

an
ce

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ith

 p
rim

ar
y 

ca
re

 c
on

tra
ct

in
g 

- A
dd

iti
on

al
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

ba
se

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
B

ro
ok

 
A

dv
is

or
y 

he
al

th
 S

er
vi

ce
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
 F

ul
l 

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 F

ou
nd

at
io

n 
P

ha
se

 n
ur

se
 

fo
r C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e.
 

-E
ns

ur
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 h
av

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 fu

ll 

Fu
rth

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

N
I 1

12
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n.

  
It 

is
 re

co
gn

is
ed

 th
at

 th
is

 is
 o

ne
 o

f B
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 
D

ag
en

ha
m

’s
 b

ig
ge

st
 c

ha
lle

ng
es

 a
nd

 it
 w

ill
 

re
qu

ire
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t e
ffo

rt 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 ta
ck

le
 th

e 
de

ep
-r

oo
te

d 
cu

ltu
ra

l i
ss

ue
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 

hi
gh

 ra
te

s 
of

 te
en

 p
re

gn
an

ci
es

. 
Fu

rth
er

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 re

qu
ire

d 
on

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
in

g 
ho

ts
po

t a
re

as
, c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 s

ch
oo

ls
 

w
he

re
 th

e 
ra

te
 o

f t
ee

na
ge

 p
re

gn
an

cy
 is

 a
t i

ts
 

hi
gh

es
t. 

Th
e 

E
xp

er
ia

n 
P

ro
je

ct
 h

as
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 a

 
nu

m
be

r o
f t

ar
ge

t a
re

as
, t

og
et

he
r w

ith
 w

ha
t 

m
ed

ia
 th

ey
 b

es
t r

es
po

nd
 to

. A
 ta

rg
et

ed
 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
ca

m
pa

ig
n 

is
 a

bo
ut

 to
 g

o 
liv

e 
- 

La
m

pp
os

t a
nd

 b
us

 a
dv

er
tis

in
g 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
is

 
m

od
el

. A
 re

vi
ew

 o
f i

ts
 im

pa
ct

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

on
ce

 c
om

pl
et

ed
. 

Page 27



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

ra
ng

e 
of

 c
on

tra
ce

pt
io

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

LA
R

C
 

an
d 

E
H

C
 in

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

6 
lo

ca
lit

ie
s.

 
- H

ea
lth

 A
dv

is
er

s 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
3 

dr
op

 in
 

se
ss

io
ns

 p
er

 w
ee

k 
pe

r s
ec

on
da

ry
 s

ch
oo

l. 
 

D
ev

el
op

 s
ex

ua
l h

ea
lth

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
on

 3
 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

s 
si

te
s 

or
 c

o-
lo

ca
te

d 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

ce
nt

re
s.

 
- A

do
pt

 a
nd

 u
se

 th
e 

N
E

E
T 

ris
k 

re
gi

st
er

 
an

d 
th

e 
C

A
F 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

t 
ris

k 

Pr
os

pe
ro

us
 

Fe
w

er
 y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 n
ot

 in
 

ed
uc

at
io

n,
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t o

r 
tra

in
in

g 

N
I 1

17
 (L

A
A

) 1
6 

to
 1

8 
ye

ar
 o

ld
s 

w
ho

 a
re

 n
ot

 in
 

ed
uc

at
io

n,
 

tra
in

in
g 

or
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

(N
E

E
T)

 

8.
9%

 
(2

00
8)

 

Ac
tio

ns
 fo

r I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t:-
 P

la
n 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
pr

og
re

ss
io

n 
pa

th
w

ay
s 

ar
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fro

m
 

20
10

, f
or

 th
os

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
be

lo
w

 L
ev

el
 2

 a
nd

 a
re

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 a

t r
is

k 
of

 
be

co
m

in
g 

N
E

E
T 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

Le
ve

l 2
 a

nd
 

Le
ve

l 3
 q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
n 

re
su

lts
.  

 - 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 tw

o 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

pa
ce

s 
in

 th
e 

Fo
ye

r-
 o

n 
th

e 
gr

ou
nd

 fl
oo

r, 
an

 e
xt

en
si

ve
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 a
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

gu
id

an
ce

 fa
ci

lit
y 

kn
ow

n 
as

 C
on

ne
xi

on
s 

P
lu

s,
 is

 b
ei

ng
 

cr
ea

te
d.

 C
on

ta
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
is

 fa
ci

lit
y 

is
 

al
so

 a
 s

pe
ci

al
is

ed
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e’

s 
he

al
th

 
cl

in
ic

. O
n 

th
e 

fir
st

 fl
oo

r, 
an

 in
du

st
ry

 
st

an
da

rd
 d

ig
ita

l a
nd

 m
ed

ia
 a

rts
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 

fa
ci

lit
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

. A
cc

re
di

te
d 

le
ar

ni
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

e 
C

re
at

iv
e 

an
d 

M
ed

ia
 D

ip
lo

m
a,

 
or

 B
TE

C
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

of
fe

re
d.

- T
ak

in
g 

pa
rt 

in
 

th
e 

a 
D

C
S

F 
re

se
ar

ch
 s

tu
dy

 to
 in

ve
st

ig
at

e 
th

e 
ba

rr
ie

rs
 th

at
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
in

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
in

g 
in

 p
os

t 1
6 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
or

 
tra

in
in

g.
 U

p 
to

 1
00

0 
ye

ar
 1

1 
le

av
er

s 
w

ill
 

be
 c

on
ta

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
sk

ed
 to

 b
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 

te
le

ph
on

e 
re

se
ar

ch
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

te
le

ph
on

e 
in

te
rv

ie
w

s,
 th

e 
re

se
ar

ch
er

s 
w

ill
 

co
nd

uc
t s

om
e 

fa
ce

 to
 fa

ce
 in

te
rv

ie
w

s 
w

ith
 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 a
re

 n
ot

 in
 e

du
ca

tio
n,

 

Fu
rth

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

N
I 1

17
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n.

It 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

be
ne

fic
ia

l i
f t

he
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 fu
rth

er
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

os
e 

gr
ou

ps
, 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 s
ch

oo
ls

 w
hi

ch
 p

ro
du

ce
 th

e 
hi

gh
es

t n
um

be
r o

f N
E

E
Ts

.T
hi

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ou
ld

 a
llo

w
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

nd
 id

en
tif

y 
ga

ps
 w

he
re

 fu
rth

er
 w

or
k 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ta

rg
et

ed
. 

Page 28



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t o

r t
ra

in
in

g 
(N

E
E

T)
, i

n 
a 

jo
b 

w
ith

ou
t t

ra
in

in
g 

(J
W

T)
, a

 te
en

ag
e 

pa
re

nt
 

or
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

le
ar

ni
ng

 d
iff

ic
ul

tie
s 

an
d/

or
 a

 
di

sa
bi

lit
y.

 T
he

 a
na

ly
si

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

la
te

r t
hi

s 
ye

ar
.  

H
ea

lth
y 

Pe
op

le
 e

nj
oy

 
lo

ng
er

 a
nd

 
he

al
th

ie
r l

iv
es

 / 
R

ed
uc

ed
 h

ea
lth

 
in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 

N
I 1

21
 (L

A
A

) 
M

or
ta

lit
y 

ra
te

 
fro

m
 a

ll 
ci

rc
ul

at
or

y 
di

se
as

es
 a

t 
ag

es
 u

nd
er

 7
5 

D
at

a 
du

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
09

 

Th
is

 is
 a

ck
no

w
le

dg
ed

 a
s 

be
in

g 
th

e 
m

os
t 

co
m

m
on

 c
au

se
 o

f d
ea

th
 in

 B
&

D
 a

nd
 th

e 
la

rg
es

t c
au

se
 o

f p
re

m
at

ur
e 

de
at

h.
 In

 
de

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 th

is
 a

 la
rg

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 m

ad
e 

to
 th

is
 b

y 
th

e 
P

C
T 

an
d 

a 
se

ni
or

 m
em

be
r o

f s
ta

ff 
is

 
be

in
g 

re
cr

ui
te

d 
to

 re
vi

ew
 c

ur
re

nt
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 
ag

re
e 

a 
st

ra
te

gy
 fo

r l
ar

ge
-s

ca
le

 c
ha

ng
e 

an
d 

to
 b

eg
in

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
at

 
ch

an
ge

.  

Fu
rth

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

N
I 1

21
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n.

 
Th

e 
C

A
A

 L
ea

d 
ha

s 
be

en
 lo

ok
in

g 
at

 h
ea

lth
 

in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

in
 s

om
e 

de
ta

il 
an

d 
th

is
 a

ud
it 

w
ill

 
en

ab
le

 u
s 

to
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
ou

r p
ro

sp
ec

ts
 fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t. 
 T

hi
s 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 s
ho

ul
d 

th
en

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 re

fin
e 

th
e 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 
S

tra
te

gy
 a

nd
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
H

ea
lth

ie
r B

or
ou

gh
 B

oa
rd

. 

H
ea

lth
y 

Pe
op

le
 e

nj
oy

 
lo

ng
er

 a
nd

 
he

al
th

ie
r l

iv
es

 

N
I 1

23
 (L

A
A

) 
16

+ 
cu

rr
en

t 
sm

ok
in

g 
ra

te
 

pr
ev

al
en

ce
 

11
68

 

20
08

/0
9 

ta
rg

et
 e

xc
ee

de
d,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 
at

tri
bu

ta
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

P
C

T'
s 

S
er

vi
ce

 P
la

n 
an

d 
re

du
ci

ng
 s

tra
in

 o
n 

sm
ok

in
g 

re
la

te
d 

tre
at

m
en

ts
 

Th
is

 in
di

ca
to

r c
ol

le
ct

ed
 q

ua
rte

rly
, b

ut
 d

at
a 

is
 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
by

 th
e 

P
C

T 
w

ith
 a

 ti
m

e-
la

g.
 

Pr
os

pe
ro

us
 

M
or

e 
pe

op
le

 in
 

w
or

k 
an

d 
in

 
be

tte
r p

ai
d 

jo
bs

 

N
I 1

51
  (

Lo
ca

l 
LA

A
) O

ve
ra

ll 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
ra

te
 

D
at

a 
du

e 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
9

Pr
os

pe
ro

us
 

M
or

e 
pe

op
le

 in
 

w
or

k 
an

d 
in

 
be

tte
r p

ai
d 

jo
bs

 

N
I 1

52
 (L

A
A

) 
W

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 

pe
op

le
 o

n 
ou

t o
f 

w
or

k 
be

ne
fit

s 
D

at
a 

du
e 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

9

Ac
tio

ns
 fo

r I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t: 
o 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 A

ffo
rd

ab
ili

ty
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
– 

to
 

he
lp

 w
or

kl
es

s 
pa

re
nt

s 
in

to
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t. 

 
U

p 
to

 £
1m

 in
 L

D
A

 fu
nd

in
g 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
o 

V
ill

ag
e 

W
ar

d 
W

or
kl

es
sn

es
s 

pr
oj

ec
t –

 
pi

lo
t a

n 
in

no
va

tiv
e 

lo
ca

l m
et

ho
d 

of
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 s

ki
lls

 s
up

po
rt 

ta
rg

et
ed

 a
t 

w
om

en
.  

M
od

el
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

C
ab

in
et

 O
ffi

ce
 C

ap
ab

ili
ty

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e.
  F

un
di

ng
 to

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 

o
W

or
ki

ng
w

ith
dr

ug
an

d
al

co
ho

lu
se

rs
–

Fu
rth

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

N
I 1

51
, 

N
I 1

52
 a

nd
 N

I 1
53

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n.

 
Th

es
e 

th
re

e 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

om
bi

ne
d 

to
 c

re
at

e 
a 

Th
em

at
ic

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n,

 d
ue

 
to

 th
e 

ov
er

la
p 

of
 w

or
k 

ar
ea

s,
 w

ith
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 b
ei

ng
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

re
ce

ss
io

n.
   

A
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

ai
m

 is
 to

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

pe
op

le
 o

n 
ou

t o
f w

or
k 

be
ne

fit
s 

by
 g

et
tin

g 
th

em
 in

 to
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

it 
sh

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 
no

te
d

th
at

in
cr

ea
si

ng
th

e
nu

m
be

ro
fb

en
ef

it

Page 29



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

Pr
os

pe
ro

us
 

M
or

e 
pe

op
le

 in
 

w
or

k 
an

d 
in

 
be

tte
r p

ai
d 

jo
bs

 

N
I 1

53
 (L

A
A

) 
W

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 

pe
op

le
 c

la
im

in
g 

ou
t o

f w
or

k 
be

ne
fit

s 
in

 th
e 

w
or

st
 

pe
rfo

rm
in

g 
ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
ds

D
at

a 
du

e 
la

te
 

20
09

 

o 
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 d

ru
g 

an
d 

al
co

ho
l u

se
rs

 –
 

up
 to

 £
40

0k
 o

f L
D

A
 fu

nd
in

g 
to

 b
e 

dr
aw

n 
do

w
n 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 s

ki
lls

 
su

pp
or

t. 
o 

In
te

ns
iv

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

-b
as

ed
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

– 
up

 to
 £

64
0k

 in
 L

D
A

 m
on

ey
 to

 b
e 

dr
aw

n 
do

w
n 

to
 ta

rg
et

 w
ar

ds
 w

ith
 a

 h
ig

h 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 b

en
ef

it 
cl

ai
m

an
ts

 
o 

La
un

ch
 E

m
pl

oy
er

 A
cc

or
d 

al
on

g 
w

ith
 a

 
st

at
em

en
t o

f C
ou

nc
il 

ac
tio

ns
 a

s 
an

 
ex

em
pl

ar
 lo

ca
l e

m
pl

oy
er

 
o 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

E
co

no
m

ic
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

 
o 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 c
o-

or
di

na
tio

n 
of

 lo
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
ta

ck
lin

g 
w

or
kl

es
sn

es
s 

o 
S

ec
ur

e 
ga

in
s 

fro
m

 lo
ca

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

an
d 

co
un

ci
l p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t  

no
te

d 
th

at
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f b
en

ef
it 

cl
ai

m
an

ts
 w

ill
 im

pa
ct

 p
os

iti
ve

ly
 o

n 
re

du
ci

ng
 

ch
ild

 p
ov

er
ty

. 

Pr
os

pe
ro

us
 

M
or

e 
ho

m
es

, 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

m
es

 

N
I 1

54
 (L

A
A

) 
N

et
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
ho

m
es

 p
ro

vi
de

d

37
3 

(p
ro

vi
si

on
al

 
un

til
 A

ug
 0

9)
 

R
is

ks
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

by
 C

le
an

 G
re

en
 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 B
oa

rd
:S

up
pl

y 
in

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
s 

is
 fo

re
ca

st
 to

 fa
ll 

sh
or

t o
f t

he
 

LA
A

 T
ar

ge
t. 

 T
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 d
et

ai
ls

 li
st

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
sc

he
m

es
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 fo
re

ca
st

 to
 

de
liv

er
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
LA

A
 p

er
io

d.
  I

t 
is

 u
nl

ik
el

y 
th

at
 a

ll 
th

is
 s

up
pl

y 
w

ill
 c

om
e 

fo
rw

ar
d.

  T
he

 m
os

t v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

si
te

s 
ar

e 
th

os
e 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 le
d,

  
th

er
ef

or
e 

Fr
es

hw
ha

rf 
an

d 
to

 a
 le

ss
er

 
ex

te
nt

 U
E

L 
as

 th
is

 is
 m

or
e 

ad
va

nc
ed

.  
Th

e 
LH

C
 s

ch
em

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 m
or

e 
ro

bu
st

 
du

e 
to

 th
ei

r b
us

in
es

s 
m

od
el

.  
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 a
 5

0%
 p

ar
tn

er
 in

 th
e 

LH
C

 a
nd

 th
er

ef
or

e 
th

es
e 

sc
he

m
es

 a
re

 le
ss

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 o

n 
pr

iv
at

e 
fin

an
ce

 a
nd

 th
er

ef
or

e 
le

ss
 g

ea
re

d.
  

S
im

ila
rly

 th
e 

H
C

A
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t i
n 

Ly
m

in
gt

on
 F

ie
ld

s 
an

d 
B

ar
ki

ng
 R

iv
er

si
de

 
sh

ou
ld

 s
ee

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
in

 th
es

e 
sc

he
m

es
 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d.

  A
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l r
is

k 
is

 th
e 

Fu
rth

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

N
I 1

54
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n.

 

Page 30



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
  T

he
re

 
re

m
ai

n 
do

ub
ts

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
D

LR
 e

xt
en

si
on

 a
nd

 E
LT

 p
ha

se
s 

2 
an

d 
3.

  E
LT

 p
ha

se
 2

 is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 h

av
e 

m
os

t 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

ho
us

in
g 

de
liv

er
y 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
LA

A
 p

er
io

d.
  H

ow
ev

er
 T

fL
 a

nd
 L

TG
D

C
 

ar
e 

ex
pl

or
in

g 
a 

su
bs

tit
ut

e 
sc

he
m

e 
w

hi
ch

 
w

ou
ld

 s
er

ve
 th

e 
C

ul
tu

ra
l I

nd
us

tri
es

 
Q

ua
rte

r a
nd

 F
re

sh
w

ha
rf 

an
d 

co
nn

ec
t 

B
ar

ki
ng

 T
ow

n 
S

up
pl

y 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

co
m

e 
fro

m
 

m
in

or
 s

ite
s,

 th
is

 is
 c

om
m

on
ly

 c
al

le
d 

w
in

df
al

l s
up

pl
y.

 
Pr

os
pe

ro
us

 
M

or
e 

ho
m

es
, 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
m

es
 

N
I 1

55
 (L

A
A

) 
N

um
be

r o
f 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
m

es
 

de
liv

er
ed

 
(g

ro
ss

) 

26
2 

Ta
rg

et
 is

 b
ei

ng
 re

-p
ro

fil
ed

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 d
ow

nt
ur

n 
w

hi
ch

 
ha

s 
al

so
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
. 

  

Pr
os

pe
ro

us
 

Be
tte

r s
ki

lle
d 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 

N
I 1

63
 (L

A
A

) 
W

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
qu

al
ifi

ed
 to

 a
t 

le
as

t L
ev

el
 2

 o
r 

hi
gh

er
 

A
w

ai
tin

g 
da

ta
 re

le
as

e 

A
ct

io
ns

 fo
r I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t: 

- I
m

pr
ov

ed
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

tiv
e 

de
liv

er
y 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
s 

an
d 

lo
ca

l f
ur

th
er

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

an
d 

in
 

pa
rti

cu
la

r a
t L

ev
el

 2
 fo

r p
os

t-1
6 

le
ar

ne
rs

 
w

he
re

 s
uc

ce
ss

 a
nd

 re
te

nt
io

n 
ra

te
s 

ar
e 

lo
w

. 
- I

nc
re

as
in

g 
Le

ve
l 2

 a
nd

 N
V

Q
 2

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ow
n 

w
or

kf
or

ce
. 

- M
al

e 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
ra

te
s 

(w
hi

te
 B

rit
is

h 
le

ar
ne

rs
) a

re
 v

er
y 

lo
w

 a
nd

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d.

 
- I

m
pr

ov
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 o
f a

du
lt 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
to

 
be

tte
r m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
d 

of
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

er
s.

 
- I

m
pr

ov
ed

 ta
rg

et
in

g 
(th

ro
ug

h 
ap

pr
ai

sa
ls

 
an

d 
12

1s
) n

ee
de

d 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

th
os

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

el
ig

ib
le

 fo
r t

ra
in

in
g 

un
de

r t
he

 S
ki

lls
 P

le
dg

e.
 

Fu
rth

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

N
I 1

63
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n.

 

Page 31



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

Pr
os

pe
ro

us
 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
bu

si
ne

ss
 s

ta
rt 

up
s 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 

N
I 1

71
 (L

A
A

) 
N

ew
 b

us
in

es
s 

re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

ra
te

 

D
at

a 
du

e 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
09

 

Ac
tio

ns
 fo

r I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t: 
- R

es
ou

rc
es

 v
ia

 B
D

E
 th

is
 y

ea
r h

av
e 

be
en

 
re

-fo
cu

ss
ed

 to
 s

up
po

rti
ng

 e
xi

st
in

g 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
to

 m
in

im
is

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 fa

ilu
re

s 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

ne
w

ly
 s

ta
rte

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

) a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
bu

si
ne

ss
 

gr
ow

th
 w

ith
 le

ss
 e

m
ph

as
is

 o
n 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 th
e 

en
tre

pr
en

eu
ria

l c
ul

tu
re

. 
- A

 N
ew

 E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

tra
te

gy
 

an
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 s

tru
ct

ur
e 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 
be

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
th

e 
N

ew
 Y

ea
r. 

Th
is

 w
ill

 re
su

lt 
in

 a
n 

ec
on

om
ic

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t s
in

gl
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
a 

cl
ea

re
r f

oc
us

 a
nd

 a
 

m
or

e 
co

-o
rd

in
at

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 s

ec
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 a

nd
 m

ax
im

is
in

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

  
Th

e 
si

ng
le

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

w
ill

 s
et

 o
ut

 th
e 

su
cc

es
s 

m
ea

su
re

s 
on

e 
of

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
N

I1
71

. 

Fu
rth

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

N
I 1

71
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n.

 

Pr
os

pe
ro

us
 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
bu

si
ne

ss
 s

ta
rt 

up
s 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 

N
I 1

72
 (L

A
A

) 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
sm

al
l 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 in

 
an

 a
re

a 
sh

ow
in

g 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
gr

ow
th

 

D
at

a 
du

e 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
09

 

S
er

vi
ce

 c
om

m
en

ta
ry

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
 

  

Pr
os

pe
ro

us
 

M
or

e 
pe

op
le

 in
 

w
or

k 
an

d 
in

 
be

tte
r p

ai
d 

jo
bs

 

N
I 1

73
 (L

A
A

) 
P

eo
pl

e 
fa

lli
ng

 
ou

t o
f w

or
k 

an
d 

on
 to

 in
ca

pa
ci

ty
 

be
ne

fit
s 

D
at

a 
du

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
09

 

Ac
tio

ns
 fo

r I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t: 
- C

o-
or

di
na

te
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
ith

 b
ot

h 
G

P
s 

an
d 

lo
ca

l e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

S
m

al
l a

nd
 M

ed
iu

m
 

si
ze

d 
en

te
rp

ris
es

 a
im

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
pe

rs
on

al
is

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 ti

m
el

y 
by

 
si

gn
po

st
in

g 
ea

rly
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
to

w
ar

ds
 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
hi

ch
 d

ea
l q

ui
ck

ly
 w

ith
 b

ar
rie

rs
 

to
 s

us
ta

in
, g

ai
n 

or
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

w
he

re
 a

 p
er

so
n 

is
 a

bs
en

t f
ro

m
 w

or
k 

th
ro

u g
h 

si
ck

ne
ss

.

Fu
rth

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

N
I 1

73
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n.

 
 Th

is
 in

di
ca

to
r i

s 
co

lle
ct

ed
 q

ua
rte

rly
, b

ut
 d

at
a 

is
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

w
ith

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t t
im

e-
la

g.
 

Page 32



C
ou

nc
il 

Pr
io

rit
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
th

is
 

by
…

 

W
e 

w
ill

 
m

ea
su

re
 o

ur
 

pr
og

re
ss

 b
y…

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

20
08

/0
9 

 
R

A
G

 a
ga

in
st

 
Lo

nd
on

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

om
m

en
ta

ry
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

 

- B
y 

lin
ki

ng
 w

ith
 fi

tn
es

s 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 b
as

ed
 a

t 
a 

Le
is

ur
e 

C
en

tre
 th

e 
Fi

t F
or

 W
or

k 
S

er
vi

ce
 

se
ek

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 n

eu
tra

l v
en

ue
 w

ith
 

ex
te

nd
ed

 h
ou

rs
 w

hi
ls

t e
nc

ou
ra

gi
ng

 
su

pe
rv

is
ed

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
an

d 
fit

ne
ss

 a
s 

an
 

ad
de

d 
op

tio
n 

w
hi

ch
 is

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l f

or
 b

ot
h 

m
en

ta
l w

el
lb

ei
ng

 a
nd

 re
bu

ild
in

g 
ph

ys
ic

al
 

fit
ne

ss
 fo

r w
or

k.
 

- T
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 O
cc

up
at

io
na

l H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
 

w
hi

ch
 c

ov
er

s 
L.

B
 B

ar
ki

ng
 &

 D
ag

en
ha

m
 

st
af

f w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 a
s 

a 
ba

se
lin

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
ac

t a
s 

a 
co

nt
ro

l t
o 

try
 o

ut
 /a

dd
 

ad
di

tio
na

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
as

 fu
rth

er
 n

ee
d 

be
co

m
es

 a
pp

ar
en

t. 
Th

is
 s

er
vi

ce
 c

ov
er

s 
80

00
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s,
 4

3%
 o

f w
ho

m
 li

ve
 a

nd
 

w
or

k 
in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

.  
  

C
le

an
 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 
C

O
2 

em
is

si
on

s 
N

I 1
85

 (L
A

A
) 

C
O

2 
re

du
ct

io
n 

fro
m

 L
oc

al
 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
op

er
at

io
ns

 

A
w

ai
tin

g 
da

ta
 re

le
as

e 

S
er

vi
ce

 c
om

m
en

ta
ry

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
 

Th
re

e-
ye

ar
 ta

rg
et

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
se

t f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

co
nf

irm
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
20

08
/0

9 
en

d 
of

 y
ea

r 
re

su
lt.

 

C
le

an
 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

w
as

te
 g

oi
ng

 to
 

la
nd

fil
l 

N
I 1

92
 (L

A
A

) 
H

ou
se

ho
ld

 
w

as
te

 re
cy

cl
ed

 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
ed

 
25

.0
5%

 

Th
e 

pe
rfo

m
an

ce
 h

as
 im

pr
ov

ed
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

in
tro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 a

 b
lu

e 
bo

x 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

sc
he

m
e 

in
 J

un
e 

20
08

. G
la

ss
 b

ot
tle

s 
an

d 
ja

rs
 a

re
 c

ol
le

ct
ed

 fo
rtn

ig
ht

ly
 o

n 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

da
y 

as
 n

or
m

al
 re

fu
se

 c
ol

le
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ar
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 w
ith

 a
 b

lu
e 

bo
x 

fo
r 

st
or

in
g 

th
ei

r r
ec

yc
lin

g.
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 th

is
 a

re
a 

is
 c

ru
ci

al
 to

 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

 
N

I 1
91

.  
 

Th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f a

ct
io

ns
 to

 ta
ck

le
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
is

 fo
cu

se
d 

on
 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 re

cy
cl

in
g 

ra
te

s.
 

 Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



 

THE EXECUTIVE 
 

20 OCTOBER 2009 
 

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 
 

Title: Budget Monitoring 2009/10 - April to August 2009 For Decision 
 
Summary:  
 

The report updates the Executive on the Council’s revenue and capital position for the 
period April to August of the 2009/10 financial year. 
 
The current forecast for revenue expenditure across the Council has identified that all 
departments are projecting in-year pressures amounting to £4m (Adults & Community 
Services £1m, Children’s Services £1.1m, Customer Services £0.8m and Resources £1.1 
m). The most significant areas of pressures relate to expenditure on transition 
arrangements within the Adult Services Learning Disability, transport services for children 
with Special Educational Needs (SEN), Looked after Children Placements and in meeting 
the Council’s Leaving Care responsibilities, the Barking and Dagenham Direct service and 
various income generation. 
 
In light of the current potential overspend, the Chief Executive has asked each department 
to prepare as a matter of urgency a recovery plan to eliminate these overspends. These 
recovery plans will be presented to the Corporate Management team and the agreed 
actions will be reported back to the Executive. 
 
For the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) the forecast is that the year end working balance 
will be £2.3m which includes an in year contribution to balances of £2.2m. 
 
In regard to the Capital programme, the current projection is that the year-end outturn 
position will be £97.3m against a working budget of £113.3m. Directors are currently 
reviewing the delivery of individual capital schemes to ensure maximum spend within 
budget is achieved by the year end, and where any re-profiling is required this will be 
presented to the Executive in the September Budget Monitoring report. 
 
Wards Affected:  This is a regular budget monitoring report of the Council’s resource 
position and applies to all wards. 
 
 

Recommendations 
 
 
The Executive is asked to: 
 
1. note the current position of the Council’s revenue and capital budget as at 31st 

August 2009 (sections 3 and 5 of the report and Appendix A and B); 
 
2. note the position for the HRA (section 4 of the report); 
 
3. note that in light of the current potential overspend, the Chief Executive has asked 

each department to prepare as a matter of urgency a recovery plan to eliminate these 
overspends. These recovery plans will be presented to the Corporate Management 
team and the agreed actions will be reported back to the Executive; 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5

Page 35



 

 
 

 
4. Agree to the use of the contingency budget to fund the pressures within the 

Resources department, as outlined in paragraph’s 3.5.6 and 3.5.8, which will have no 
impact on the overall 2009/10 budget; 

 
5. Agree to the budget virement within the Resources department, as outlined in 

paragraph’s 3.5.2, which will have no impact on the overall 2009/10 budget; 
 
6. Agree to the drawdown from the set aside IT reserve to fund the systems 

development work within the Finance service (paragraph 3.5.6). 
 
 

Reason 
 

As a matter of good financial practise, the Executive should be regularly updated with the 
position on the Council’s budget. 
 
 

Implications: 
Financial:  
The overall revenue budget is indicating potential budget pressures in all of the Council’s 
service departments totalling £4m. Where pressures exist Corporate Directors are required 
to identify and implement the necessary recovery plans to alleviate these pressures. The 
capital programme is projected to outturn at £97.3m against the working budget of 
£113.3m. 
 
Legal: 
There are no legal implications regarding this report. 
 
Contractual: 
No specific implications 

Risk Management: 
The risk to the Council is that budgets are overspent and that this reduces the Council’s 
overall resource position. Where there is an indication that a budget may overspend by the 
year end the relevant Director will be required to review the Departmental budget position 
to achieve a balanced position by the year end. 
This may involve the need to produce a formal action plan to ensure delivery of this 
position for approval and monitoring by the Resource Monitoring Panel and the Executive. 
Similarly, if there are underspends this may mean a lower level of service or capital 
investment not being fully delivered. Specific procedures and sanctions are in place 
through the Resource Monitoring Panels, Capital Programme Management Office 
(CPMO), Corporate Management Team and the Executive. 
 
Staffing: 
No specific implications 
 

Customer Impact: 
No specific implications 
 

Safeguarding Children: 
No specific implications 
 

Crime and Disorder: 
No specific implications 
 

Page 36



 

 
 

Property/Assets: 
No specific implications 
 
Options Appraisal: 
No specific implications 
 

 
Head of Service 
Simon Hughes 
 
 

 
Title: 
Interim Corporate Financial 
Controller 
 

 
Contact Details: 
Tel:020 8227 2801 
E-mail: simon.hughes@lbbd.gov.uk 
 

 
1.  Background 
 
1.1 It is important that the Council regularly monitors its revenue and capital budgets 

to ensure good financial management. It is now practise within the Council for this 
monitoring to occur on a regular monthly basis, which helps members to be 
constantly updated on the Council’s overall financial position and to enable the 
Executive to make relevant decisions as necessary on the direction of both the 
revenue and capital budgets. 

 
1.2 The report is based upon the core information contained in the Oracle general 

ledger system supplemented by detailed examinations of budgets between the 
budget holders and the relevant Finance teams to take account of commitments 
and projected end of year positions. In addition, for capital monitoring there is the 
extensive work carried out by the Capital Programme Management Office. 

 
1.3 The monthly Resource Monitoring Panels (RMP), chaired by the lead member for 

finance, and attended by Directors and Heads of Service, monitors the detail of 
individual departments’ revenue and capital budgets alongside relevant 
performance data and this also enhances and forms the basis of this report. 

 
2. Current Position 
 
2.1 Overview for Revenue Budget 
 
2.1.1 The current forecast across the Council in respect of its revenue budget has 

identified that all departments are projecting in-year pressures as detailed below: 
  Department     £’000 
 Adult & Community Services  1,000 
 Children’s Services   1,100 
 Customer Services       821 
 Resources     1,114 
 Total      4,035 
 
2.1.2 Details of each Department’s current financial position are provided in Section 3 of 

this report. In light of the current potential overspend, the Chief Executive has 
asked each department to prepare as a matter of urgency a recovery plan to 
eliminate these overspends. These recovery plans will be presented to the 
Corporate Management team and the agreed actions will be reported back to the 
Executive. 

Page 37



 

 
3. Service Position 
 
3.1 General 
 
3.1.1 Details of each Department’s financial position and the work being undertaken by 

Corporate Directors and their management teams to ensure a balanced budget is 
produced for the year end are provided in this section of the report. 

 
3.2 Adult’s and Community Services Department 
 
3.2.1 The Adult and Community Services budget position for 2009/10 is very challenging 

and the department is currently projecting a £1m overspend. There are two main 
reasons for the current projection: 
– pressures in the Learning Disability Service area with regards to Transitions 

arrangements from Children’s Services (£500k); 
– pressures with regards to Older Persons Residential Placements (£500k). 

 
3.2.2 The department’s management team are currently preparing a recovery plan in an 

attempt to manage these pressures and produce a balanced budget.  
 
3.2.3 Adult Care Services 
 This area is primarily Older Persons Residential and Home Support provided by 

the remaining in-house services. It also includes the Passenger Transport Service 
and Sheltered Housing Support. The net budget for the area is £5 million. Budget 
and demand pressures are currently being experienced in Passenger Transport 
(of which 80% of the service is provided for and charged to Children’s Services) 
and these will need to be carefully monitored and managed by the service. 

 
3.2.4 Adult Commissioning Services 

This service area represents the Social Work and Care Management budgets in 
the department together with services commissioned from the Independent and 
Private Sector. Service areas include Older Persons, Physical Disability, Learning 
Disability and Mental Health and the net budget for the area is £44m.The service 
has some challenging targets (£2m) in this area for 2009/10 around staffing and 
commissioning savings. Interface issues with the local hospitals and the PCT in 
areas such as Delayed Transfers of Care are acute in this area and need to be 
carefully managed. Two pressures are currently being experienced in the service 
totalling £1m being: 
– Transitions from Children’s Learning Disability Services area due to the 

increasing number of children with care packages/arrangements turning 
eighteen (£500k); 

– Interface issues with the local Hospitals and the PCT in areas such as Delayed 
Transfers of Care (£500k).  
 

3.2.5 Community Safety and Neighbourhood Services 
This service area includes CCTV, Community Safety, Parks Police and Security, 
Substance Misuse, Neighbourhood Management, Youth Offending Service and 
the Adult Safeguarding Team. The net budgets are £4m for this area, and the 
division is required to deliver staffing and service savings in 2009/10 of £500k. No 
significant budget pressures are being experienced at present. 

Page 38



 

 
3.2.6 Community Cohesion and Equalities 

This service area covers Heritage and Archives, Library Services, the Barking 
Learning Centre, Community Development and Halls, Community Cohesion and 
Equalities and Diversity. The net budgets are in the region of £8m in this area. The 
division is required to deliver staffing and service savings in 2009/10 of £500k. No 
significant budget pressures are being experienced in this area at present. 
 

3.2.7 Leisure and Amenities 
This service area covers Leisure Centres, Parks Services and Arts and Events. 
The net budgets for the area are in the region of £7m. The division is required to 
deliver staffing and service savings in 2009/10 of approximately £600k. Whilst a 
balanced budget is being projected, the implications of the current economic 
climate may effect income generation across the division. 
 

3.2.8 Other Services, Central Budgets, Recharges, and Government Grants 
The Adult and Community Services Department receive specific government 
grants and incur recharges for departmental and divisional support. All specific 
grants will be used in support of existing service areas. Central budgets and 
recharges within the department are on target. 

 
3.3 Children’s Services Department 
 
3.3.1 The Children’s Services are currently projecting £1.1m of General Fund budget 

pressures that if not managed may lead to an overspend. There are two main 
reasons for the current projection: 
• Increased transport costs for Children with Special Educational Needs (SEN) 

which is projected to overspend by £600k; 
• Increased costs in the placements budget of £500k. 

 
3.3.2 The General fund budget for 2009/10 has been set in the context of a net working 

budget of £52m which includes an additional £3.5 million of funding for Children’s 
Placements and Leaving Care (less £480k repayment for the previous year’s 
invest to save additions for higher in-house fostering rates) which acknowledges 
the increased levels of activity in this area. It is also set in the context of achieving 
£1.9 million of corporate savings and re-profiling £1.9 million of internal budget 
measures to address previous underlying financial difficulties.  

 
3.3.3 Quality and School Improvement 

The activities in the division are broadly equal between DSG and General Fund.  
The DSG includes work on direct support for children with special needs or pupils 
out of school, as well as admissions. The General Fund work tends to be advice, 
inspection and support for schools, as well as transport costs for individual children.  

 
The Authority is required to provide transport for children with special educational 
needs (SEN) where their statement of SEN says so, and this forms the majority of 
the transport costs incurred by the Children’s Services department (as well as 
transport for social care cases and pupils who have to travel more than the statutory 
minimum distances for home to school journeys).  There was an overspend in this 
budget of £400k in 2008/09 and currently the service is projecting pressures of 
£600k in 2009/10.  

Page 39



 

 
The financial pressure has arisen due to a combination of reasons including an 
increase in the numbers of children who are eligible for transport assistance from 
429 in January to 486 in September, a delay in the procurement of new leasing 
arrangements and the increase in demand in the hiring of much more costly 
vehicles. 
The department is working hard to mitigate these pressures and identify long term 
solutions including:   
• collaborative work between officers in both Children’s and Adults Services in 

reviewing the costs, the policy and how to improve efficiencies to reduce the 
costs; 

• tendering to procure a transport service from the voluntary sector for 80 travel 
assistance places.  It is anticipated this will produce unit cost savings in the range 
of £200k to £400k in a full financial year (part year savings for 2009/10 from 
November 2009 could be in the range of £83k to 150k); 

• assessing the needs of the children to determine if other support can be given to 
children to support independence and travel assistance, for example direct 
payments, and to review what is included in statements of special educational 
need; 

• A value for money review is currently taking place within Customer Services but it 
is not anticipated that the review will have a full impact until 2010/11. 

 
3.3.4 Integrated Family Services 

Much of the work of the Shared Services and Engagement division is either 
funded from SureStart Grant or from the DSG, with only around £1m of the total 
funded from the General Fund.  There are not anticipated to be major variances at 
this stage. 
 

3.3.5 Safeguarding and Rights 
The main budget issue is that of the cost of Looked After Children placements and 
Leaving Care costs. These budgets are kept under close review and the first 
quarterly review for 2009/10 showed there are some good signs in the recent 
position. For instance, there has been an increase in capacity of in-house foster 
care, invest to save initiatives continue to support the position and there are fewer 
private, voluntary and independent foster cases than in 2008/09. The size of the 
budget problem faced by Children’s Services is significantly lower than that 
reported in previous years. The potential for volatility in this budget has however 
not gone away, and officers are projecting that if admission numbers remain as 
they are there would be an overspend of £500k during 2009/10. Funding was 
increased for 2009/10 in line with the expected position in the autumn, but this 
continues to be a volatile budget and the position could still change further during 
the year.  

 
3.3.6 Children’s Policy and Trust Commissioning 

The catering service is accounted for in the DSG, and the Youth Service and the 
Policy and Commissioning elements are within the General Fund.  While catering 
continues to require a subsidy, currently there are no other expected variances in 
this division. 

Page 40



 

 
3.3.7 Skills Learning and Employment 

This service (including the Adult College, training and 14-19 services) has been 
transferred from the former Regeneration department and there are not currently 
any expected variances. 

 
3.3.8 Schools 

Schools budgets are mostly funded from the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), with 
any delegated budgets able to be carried forward at year end. There are currently 
two schools that are in financial difficulties (Warren Comprehensive and Eastbrook 
Comprehensive) and work is in progress to develop robust recovery plans. In view 
of the ongoing review of the DSG by the Department of Children, Families Schools 
to be announced in the autumn of 2010, and the announcement by the 
Government to review schools balances with a review to clawing 5%, there is a 
need to have a robust overview of the commitments and pressures currently made 
on the DSG. 

 
3.4 Customer Services Department 
 
3.4.1 The Department’s net budget for this year is £24.4m. The department is currently 

projecting an overspend of £821k which is mainly within the Barking and 
Dagenham Direct service as a result of higher levels of expenditure than originally 
anticipated on employees expenses and supplies and services. This position is 
being addressed by management through the preparation of a recovery plan and 
implementing action to contain the overspend over the coming months. 

 
3.4.2 The Department has undergone a comprehensive budget review to realign 

budgets to services based on current service provision. This exercise was 
completed in June 2009 and has been fundamental in delivering the savings 
targets for 2009/10, the redistribution of budgets within service areas and 
identifying opportunities for future business development. 

 
3.4.3 Environment & Enforcement 

The division is projected to overspend by £38k against a budget of £22.2m. There are 
a number of service areas within the division that are projected to overspend, 
however these are being contained generally by savings in other service areas.  
 
The main pressures are within the refuse collection service (£194k), Frizlands depot 
(121k), Enforcement (£88k) and Arboriculture services (£70k) and reflect the cost of 
using agency staff to support the service and marginally increased running costs. 
The Division has implemented robust action plans to contain the overall overspend 
which incorporate projected underspends in other areas including Highways 
Maintenance, Divisional Support, Land Drainage and Safe & Sustainable transport. 

 
The division’s budget monitoring risk register has identified areas that need to be 
monitored closely during the remainder of the year including: 
a) The vehicle fleet procurement project which is scheduled to be completed in 

November 2009; 
b) The use of fuel and other type of natural energy; 
c) Trade waste income.  

Page 41



 

 
The division is also responsible for the Building Control Service, which under the 
Building Control (Local Authority Charges) regulations 1998 is required to break 
even against its chargeable services over a three year consecutive period. As at 
the end of the financial year 2008/09, the service had operated at a deficit over the 
last 3 year period and as a result the division is currently producing a recovery 
plan to bring the account back into surplus. 

 
3.4.4 Barking & Dagenham Direct 

The service is currently forecast to overspend by £746k due to overspends on 
Employees costs, as the department relies on the use of agency staff in filling the 
vacant posts. This area is currently under review and the plan is to reduce this 
significantly over the remainder of the year. Further work is being completed on 
the impact of the Mid Year Housing Benefit Subsidy claim and should any risks be 
highlighted these will reported in future reports. There is a robust action plan in 
place to ensure that the actual spend in this area is delivered within the budget 
allocation. 

 
3.4.5 General Fund Housing 

In 2008/09, the department identified a shortfall within the Private Sector Leasing 
service. This pressure was contained in 2008/09 through decisive management 
actions in increasing the administration charges and by slowing down the release 
of bigger type of property. This area can fluctuate as the service is based on 
demand, however processes are now in place and any significant changes in 
demand will be highlighted at an early stage so to assist management to make the 
necessary strategic decisions when required. A risk to this service area has been 
identified from the potential loss of housing subsidy income and this is now being 
investigated. 
The Housing Advice Service is in dispute with tenants at John Smith House over the 
impact of site refurbishment. This has put at risk £86k of potentially lost income. The 
service is continuing negotiations and are close to reaching a commercial conclusion.  

 
3.5 Resources Department 
 
3.5.1 The department has identified a number of pressures that are becoming difficult to 

contain within existing budgets including: 
– Within the Strategic Asset Management and Capital Delivery Division there is 

an estimated shortfall of £308k arising from a combination of the delay in the 
introduction of staff car parking charging and a reduction in income from the 
Land Disposal Programme; 

– The Regeneration and Economic Development Division have pressures of 
£410k arising from the delayed commencement of the planning work on behalf 
of the Local Housing Company and a shortfall in both Local Land Charges and 
planning application income due to the current economic position; 

– the Finance Division is experiencing pressures of £396k regarding the 
recruitment of senior interim support and the delivery of the statutory Internal 
Audit Plan. 

 
The Management Team has introduced an action plan across the department to 
support the production of a balanced budget position by the end of the financial 
year. This action plan includes a recruitment freeze, controls and reductions on 
supplies spend and increased income generation.  

Page 42



 

 
3.5.2 Corporate Director of Resources & Business Support 

This budget includes the costs for the Director, Business Support, One Barking 
and Dagenham and some of the Area Based Grant (ABG) expenditure which will 
be incurred within the department.  
The budget also includes an invest to save project for strategic partnering 
arrangements for back office support services.  
The delivery of the department’s services includes income received each year 
arising from the successful renegotiation of the Council’s agency contract (£400k). 
Currently this income is not formally reflected in the department’s budget, and 
therefore in order that the working budget for 2009/10, and future years, reflects 
this income and the associated costs, the Executive is asked to agree the 
following budget virement within the Director’s service which will have no overall 
impact on the 2009/10 budget: Increase Employees and Supplies budgets by 
£300k and £100k respectively and increase Income budget by £400k. 
 

3.5.3     Strategy & Performance 
 The division is central to the Council developing and delivering a framework that 

supports, challenges and ensures the Council is an excellent organisation. Its 
specific functions include Performance, Innovation, Policy, Partnerships, Marketing 
& Communications and the Olympic Ambition team.  
This division is also responsible for the production and distribution of the Council 
wide newspaper i.e. “The News”. The first issue was produced at the end of May 
and will replace three publications which had been produced in previous years. 
The production of the newspaper does rely on significant income and recharges 
from external advertising and placing public notices in the ‘The News’. If these 
income levels are not achieved then there will be a risk that an overspend may 
arise.  This position is being monitored on an ongoing basis between the 
Marketing and Communications team and Finance.  
There are no other significant issues to report for this division. 

 
3.5.4  Legal & Democratic Services 

There are currently no specific issues to report for this division and it is projected 
that the level of in-house spend will be in line with the budget at year end. The 
levels of spend on external legal services however needs to be carefully monitored 
to ensure that legal services operate within the overall Council budget. Payments 
of £250k were made in August to external providers in regard to a number of 
Children’s placement cases which may lead to a further pressure within the 
Children’s services department. Where demand levels do change in legal work 
these will be reported to the RMP as a matter of urgency to ensure appropriate 
action is undertaken. 

 
3.5.5 IT & Transformation 

There are currently no issues to report for this division and early indications show 
that a balanced position will be achieved by year end. If an under spending occurs 
in this division then this will be used to contribute towards the Departmental action 
plan. 

Page 43



 

 
3.5.6 Finance 

This Division is currently finalising its new structure which will take into account the 
financial monitoring and support requirements of the four service departments and 
a need for a more strategic approach to financial support and management. 
There continues to be a significant number of vacant senior posts in the service, 
and as a result the service is experiencing pressures amounting to £396k 
particularly in regard to the recruitment of senior interim support and the delivery of 
the statutory Internal Audit Plan. The use of interim support staff is required to be 
used to ensure that the service continues to deliver its statutory functions.  
In order that the service can continue to deliver these statutory functions, and in 
particular ensure that the Council’s financial position remains robust, the Executive 
is asked to agree to additional resources being released from the Contingency 
budget to fund the in-year finance pressure. The approved Contingency budget 
exists to support services when such unforeseen situations arise, and therefore 
the Executive is asked to agree to a budget adjustment of £350k from the 
contingency budget to fund the current pressure which will have no overall impact 
on the 2009/10 budget. 
The delivery of the division’s 2009/19 service plan also includes some necessary 
expenditure on systems development that is to be funded from the Council’s set-
aside IT reserve. These costs have, throughout the year, been projected to be 
funded from this reserve which has been created and set aside to fund these 
improvement works. In order that the division’s working budget formally reflects 
these additional costs, the Executive is asked to agree a budget adjustment of 
£250k from the IT reserve which will have no overall impact on the 2009/10 
budget.  

 
3.5.7 Human Resources 
 The division is currently undergoing a reorganisation which will take into account a 

savings requirement for 2009/10 of £300k. There are a number of vacant posts 
within the division and as a consequence the delay in the implementation of the 
new structure has not resulted in financial pressures. Therefore, the required 
savings will be achieved and the division is currently projecting that a breakeven 
position will be achieved by the end of the financial year. 

 
3.5.8 Regeneration & Economic Development 

The current forecast projection is for an overspend of £410k.  The main financial 
pressures arising are: 
• Loss of 3250k of income from the Local Housing Company (LHC) – due to 

delays in the programme for incorporating the LHC it is unlikely that any of the 
LHC schemes will reach financial closure during the current financial year. The 
delay in the delivery of the LHC will result in the department being unable to 
generate its income target of £250k. The Council has an approved Contingency 
budget to support services when such unforeseen situations arise, and 
therefore the Executive is asked to agree to a budget virement of £250k from 
the contingency budget to fund this loss of income which will have no overall 
impact on the 2009/10 budget. If the LHC is established before the end of the 
financial year some income generation may arise, and should this be the case 
this income will be returned to the contingency fund; 

Page 44



 

 
• Loss of Land Charges income £57k– due to adverse housing market conditions; 
• Reduced other income £134k - e.g. planning application fees, TfL funding, etc. 

due to the difficult current economic climate; 
• Overspend on supplies and services and contractors payments £90k. 
These pressures are being partly offset by an underspend on salaries of £127k 
due to holding vacant posts. 

 
3.5.9 Strategic Asset Management & Capital Delivery 

The current forecast projection is for an overspend of £308k.  The main financial 
pressures arising are: 
• The loss of income arising from the lack of any disposal programme to generate 

transaction fees £185k; 
• the decision to defer the charging of staff for car park permits £100k; 
• Leasehold Properties operational costs £27k. 
 
An action plan is in place to mitigate the overspending which includes the holding 
of vacant posts. The restructuring of the Asset Management area together with the 
creation of a Central Maintenance Fund will also create savings in the longer term. 

 
3.5.10 Interest on Balances 
 The current position on interest from investments is that these are performing to 

the budget target. A proportion of the Council’s investments continue to be 
managed by two external investment managers and the Council’s Treasury 
Management strategy has once again set stretching targets for these managers in 
2009/10 which are being closely monitored by the Corporate Finance Division. An 
element of these investments require the use of investment instruments such as 
gilts to be used which require tactical trades to be undertaken. Inevitably there are 
risks and rewards with the use of such investment instruments and whilst the 
Council needs to continue to review the managers’ performance it also needs to 
be aware that these potential risks/rewards do exist.  
 
The position of interest on balances is also affected during the year by both 
performance and actual spend on the Capital Programme and the delivery of the 
Council’s disposals programme. Any positive position arising in these areas may 
allow Council balances to increase. However, at the same time, any weakening of 
this position may lead to reductions in investment income. 

 
4. Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 
4.1 The HRA is currently projecting an in-year surplus of £2.2m mainly as a result of a 

decrease in the amount of negative subsidy and Housing Benefit Limitation 
payable, and the overall position can be summarised as follows: 

 
 

Description £000 

Revised working balance - 1st April 2009 118 

Projected in-year Surplus 2,154 

Projected Working Balance - 31st March 2010 2,272 
 

Page 45



 

 
The projected in-year surplus of £2,154k is summarised in the table below: 
 

Description Budget  Projected 
Outturn    

Variance 

       £'000   £'000     £'000 

Total Income (90,830) (88,916) 1,914
Supervision & Management 27,996 27,711 (285)
Repairs & Maintenance 23,982 22,786 (1,196)
Rent, Rates, Taxes & Other 524 524 0
Item 8 Calculation & Interest (1,364) (864) 500
Housing Benefit Limitation 504 100 (404)
HRA Subsidy 22,057 19,286 (2,771)
Depreciation 13,689 13,777 88
Bad Debt Provisions 746 746 0
Democratic Core 811 811 0
Capital Expenditure funded by Revenue 1,885 1,885 0
Total 0 (2,154) (2,154)

 
4.2 There are some areas that will need to be monitored closely over the coming 

months including: 
a) With the reduction in the Bank of England base rates the interest on balances 

may underachieve in 2009/10. This area is under review but the shortfall 
could be as much as £500k; 

b) The downturn in the economy will place an emphasis on the Council to 
maintain rent collection levels as high as possible. A 0.1% fall in collection 
levels is equivalent to £70k reduction in income; 

c) The Council agreed in February 2009 to pass on rent savings to tenants 
following the announcement from the Housing Minister to reduce rents. This 
has resulted in a reduction of £2.1m in rental income however will be met by 
a £2.1m reduction in negative subsidy; 

d) The Council has set the repairs and maintenance contractor the challenge to 
reduce the cost in 2009/10 by £1m. The department will continue to monitor 
this throughout the year to ensure the target underspend is achieved; 

e) The HRA contributes an annually amount into the Council’s Insurance Fund. 
The HRA element of the fund has reached £1.2m at the end of 2008/09 and 
this provides adequate protection to the HRA in 2009/10. The HRA therefore 
has identified savings of £650k in 2009/10 as the contribution earmarked for 
this fund. 

 
5. Capital Programme 
 
5.1 As at the end of August, the working budget on the capital programme was 

£113.3m against an original budget of £79.5m. Since the original budget was set, 
budgets have been transferred from 2008/09 into 2009/10 as set out in the February 
budget monitoring report, and further new schemes have been approved.  

Page 46



 

 
5.2 These new schemes fall into two categories: 

(a) Provisional schemes from the 2008/09 budget report that have now been 
successfully appraised by the Capital Programme Monitoring Office (CPMO); 
and 

(b) Schemes which have attracted additional external funding, and whose 
budgets have been increased accordingly.  

 
Full details of the Capital programme are shown in Appendix B. 

 
5.3 Actual spend as at the end of August was £21.7 million, which is 19% of the working 

budget. At this stage in the year, it is expected that the outturn will be £97.3m 
against the budget of £113.3m. However, this position will be subject to robust 
scrutiny to ensure that timetables and milestones can be adhered to, and that 
budgets are realistic. A review of the delivery of all capital projects is currently being 
undertaken, and where any re-profiling is required this will be presented to the 
Executive in the September Budget Monitoring report. 

 
5.4 The completion of capital projects on time and on budget not only supports the 

Council’s drive to excellence through its Use of Resources score, but will also 
ensure that the benefits arising from our capital projects are realised for the 
community as a whole.  

 
6. Consultees 
 
6.1 The following were consulted in the preparation of this report: 
 Councillor Bramley 
 Corporate Management Team 

Group Managers – Finance 
Capital Programme Management Office 

 
7. Background Papers Used in the Preparation of the Report: 

 
• Oracle reports 
• CPMO reports 

 
8. List of Appendices 
 

• Appendix A – General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring Statement – August 
2009 

• Appendix B – Capital Programme Budget Statement – August 2009 
 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



SE
R

VI
C

ES
O

rig
in

al
 

B
ud

ge
t

W
or

ki
ng

 
B

ud
ge

t

Ye
ar

 to
 

D
at

e 
B

ud
ge

t 

 A
ct

ua
l t

o 
D

at
e 

Ye
ar

 to
 D

at
e 

Va
ria

nc
e 

- 
ov

er
/(u

nd
er

)

 F
or

ec
as

t 
O

ut
tu

rn
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Va

ria
nc

e 
- 

ov
er

/(u
nd

er
)

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

A
du

lt 
&

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s

A
du

lt 
C

ar
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s
5,

04
6

4,
90

8
2,

60
4

2,
60

4
0

4,
90

8
0

A
du

lt 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s

43
,6

90
43

,5
71

19
,6

93
20

,0
43

35
0

44
,5

71
1,

00
0

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
&

 N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 S

er
vi

ce
s

3,
65

2
3,

75
2

1,
62

1
1,

62
1

0
3,

75
2

0
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
oh

es
io

n 
&

 E
qu

al
iti

es
7,

55
2

7,
56

2
2,

98
1

2,
98

1
0

7,
56

2
0

Le
is

ur
e 

&
 A

rts
6,

47
3

6,
55

1
1,

85
0

1,
85

0
0

6,
55

1
0

O
th

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s

58
1

78
8

1,
88

9
1,

88
9

0
78

8
0

66
,9

94
67

,1
32

30
,6

38
30

,9
88

35
0

68
,1

32
1,

00
0

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

Q
ua

lit
y 

&
 S

ch
oo

ls
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
7,

15
1

7,
15

1
4,

32
1

6,
71

6
2,

39
5

7,
75

1
60

0
In

te
gr

at
ed

 F
am

ily
 S

er
vi

ce
s

75
2

75
2

26
7

64
8

38
1

75
2

0
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

&
 R

ig
ht

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s

33
,3

13
33

,3
18

15
,4

00
15

,1
67

(2
33

)
33

,8
18

50
0

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

P
ol

ic
y 

&
 T

ru
st

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

1,
96

0
1,

96
0

3,
20

7
1,

25
1

(1
,9

56
)

1,
96

0
0

S
ki

lls
, L

ea
rn

in
g 

an
d 

E
nt

er
pr

is
e

1,
83

7
2,

42
7

88
2

2,
08

9
1,

20
7

2,
42

7
0

O
th

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s

6,
98

6
6,

98
6

3,
07

9
4,

59
9

1,
52

0
6,

98
6

0
51

,9
99

52
,5

94
27

,1
56

30
,4

70
3,

31
4

53
,6

94
1,

10
0

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 - 
D

SG
S

ch
oo

ls
(1

1,
38

2)
(1

1,
42

3)
21

,3
12

(7
,2

20
)

(2
8,

53
2)

(1
1,

42
3)

0
Q

ua
lit

y 
&

 S
ch

oo
ls

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

7,
41

7
7,

45
8

2,
48

6
1,

03
2

(1
,4

54
)

7,
45

8
0

In
te

gr
at

ed
 F

am
ily

 S
er

vi
ce

s
2,

57
5

2,
57

5
85

8
1,

05
4

19
6

2,
57

5
0

20
09

/1
0

R
EV

EN
U

E 
B

U
D

G
ET

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 S
TA

TE
M

EN
T 

- A
U

G
U

ST
 2

00
9

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

Page 49



S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
&

 R
ig

ht
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s
57

8
57

8
19

3
17

9
(1

4)
57

8
0

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

P
ol

ic
y 

&
 T

ru
st

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

58
7

58
7

19
5

1,
09

6
90

1
58

7
0

O
th

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s

22
5

22
5

75
(3

9)
(1

14
)

22
5

0
0

0
25

,1
19

(3
,8

98
)

(2
9,

01
7)

0
0

C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t &

 E
nf

or
ce

m
en

t
21

,3
70

22
,2

44
5,

46
5

8,
73

2
3,

26
7

22
,2

82
38

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s
84

2
85

2
1,

43
8

1,
37

4
(6

4)
88

9
37

C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
tra

te
gy

(9
9)

(9
3)

(4
3)

(4
)

39
(9

3)
0

B
ar

ki
ng

 &
 D

ag
en

ha
m

 D
ire

ct
2,

26
8

1,
40

9
10

,1
87

13
,5

12
3,

32
5

2,
15

5
74

6
24

,3
81

24
,4

12
17

,0
47

23
,6

15
6,

56
8

25
,2

33
82

1

R
es

ou
rc

es
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e
(4

)
(4

)
(2

)
8

10
(4

)
0

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 &
 B

us
in

es
s 

S
up

po
rt

47
9

49
7

20
7

55
3

34
6

49
7

0
S

tra
te

gy
 &

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

(8
6)

(8
6)

15
8

34
2

18
4

(8
6)

0
Le

ga
l &

 D
em

oc
ra

tic
 S

er
vi

ce
s

72
7

77
7

34
1

41
6

75
77

7
0

C
or

po
ra

te
 &

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Fi

na
nc

e
63

10
4

0
73

73
50

0
39

6
IC

T 
&

 e
G

ov
er

nm
en

t
(3

47
)

(3
47

)
(1

45
)

36
9

51
4

(3
47

)
0

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

(2
90

)
(2

00
)

(8
3)

41
12

4
(2

00
)

0
S

tra
te

gi
c 

A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t/C
ap

ita
l D

el
iv

er
y

37
4

32
8

(3
7)

3,
44

2
3,

47
9

63
6

30
8

R
eg

en
er

at
io

n 
&

 E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

3,
15

1
3,

15
1

1,
31

3
2,

68
4

1,
37

1
3,

56
1

41
0

C
or

po
ra

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
5,

75
7

5,
45

4
90

9
1,

97
7

1,
06

8
5,

45
4

0
9,

82
4

9,
67

4
2,

66
1

9,
90

5
7,

24
4

10
,7

88
1,

11
4

G
en

er
al

 F
in

an
ce

(1
1,

18
1)

(1
1,

79
4)

(4
,9

14
)

(1
0,

49
1)

(5
,5

77
)

(1
1,

79
4)

0
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y
1,

50
0

1,
50

0
62

5
0

(6
25

)
1,

50
0

0
Le

vi
es

7,
64

6
7,

64
6

3,
75

6
3,

75
6

0
7,

64
6

0

TO
TA

L
15

1,
16

3
15

1,
16

4
10

2,
08

8
84

,3
45

(1
7,

74
3)

15
5,

19
9

4,
03

5

Page 50



O
rig

in
al

R
ev

is
ed

A
ct

ua
l

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

Pr
oj

ec
te

d
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

B
ud

ge
t (

1)
B

ud
ge

t
to

 d
at

e
Sp

en
d 

to
 

O
ut

tu
rn

O
ut

tu
rn

O
ut

tu
rn

D
at

e
ag

ai
ns

t
Va

ria
tio

n
R

ev
is

ed
ag

ai
ns

t
B

ud
ge

t
O

rig
in

al
 

B
ud

ge
t

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
%

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

A
du

lt 
&

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s

25
,8

50
   

   
   

 
27

,0
10

   
   

   
3,

16
7

   
   

   
  

12
%

16
,4

68
   

   
   

   
 

(1
0,

54
2)

(9
,3

82
)

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s
11

,3
62

   
   

   
 

29
,1

65
   

   
   

2,
66

6
   

   
   

  
9%

24
,0

52
   

   
   

   
 

(5
,1

13
)

12
,6

90

C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s

25
,4

93
   

   
   

 
30

,5
04

   
   

   
11

,9
71

   
   

   
39

%
37

,9
55

   
   

   
   

 
7,

45
1

12
,4

62

R
es

ou
rc

es
16

,7
60

   
   

   
 

26
,6

28
   

   
   

3,
92

2
   

   
   

  
15

%
18

,8
33

   
   

   
   

 
(7

,7
95

)
2,

07
3

To
ta

l f
or

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

ch
em

es
 

79
,4

65
   

   
   

 
11

3,
30

7
   

   
 

21
,7

26
   

   
   

19
%

97
,3

08
   

   
   

   
 

(1
5,

99
9)

17
,8

43

A
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

 B
od

y 
Sc

he
m

es

R
es

ou
rc

es
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

0
0

To
ta

l f
or

 A
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

 B
od

y 
Sc

he
m

es
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
0

0

To
ta

l f
or

 a
ll 

Sc
he

m
es

  
79

,4
65

   
   

   
 

11
3,

30
7

   
   

 
21

,7
26

   
   

   
19

%
97

,3
08

   
   

   
   

 
(1

5,
99

9)
17

,8
43

N
ot

e
(1

) E
xc

lu
de

s 
pr

ov
is

io
na

l s
ch

em
es

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
at

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
in

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
'fo

ur
 g

re
en

 li
gh

ts
' f

ro
m

 C
P

M
O

 a
pp

ra
is

al

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 B

C
A

PI
TA

L 
PR

O
G

R
A

M
M

E 
20

09
/2

01
0

SU
M

M
A

R
Y 

O
F 

EX
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
E 

- A
U

G
U

ST
 2

00
9

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes - To confirm as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 29 September 2009
	4 Corporate Performance Report - October 2009
	Performance Monitoring Report - App. 1

	5 Budget Monitoring 2009/10 - April to August 2009
	Budget Monitoring August 2009 (App A)
	Budget Monitoring August 2009 (App B)


